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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company’)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquires, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
aspects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
annual results of Perfect Optronics Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2015, to all shareholders.

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

In 2015, the macro-economy was under downward
pressure brought about by the slowdown of economic
growth in the PRC, currency fluctuations in global
markets, and uncertainties in European economies’
recovery. The challenging global market suppressed the
consumer’s appetite in the mobile market. The Group
faced challenges in the first half of 2015 but managed to
recover in the second half of 2015. Thanks to the
business upturn in the second half year, the Group
recorded a noticeable improvement in profit. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$27,732,000, up 6% as compared with 2014. Revenue
of the Group remained steady which amounted to
HK$1,274,174,000, representing a slight decrease of 2%
year-on-year.

Display products

The Group is principally engaged in the trading of
electronics display components, namely thin film transistor
liquid crystal display (“TFT-LCD”) panels and modules,
driver integrated circuits (“ICs”) and polarisers, these
display products are the major components of display
technology used for mobile phones. The sales of TFT-LCD
panels, especially the 5-inch panels for smart phones,
achieved outstanding performance during the year and
served as a key driver for the profit of the Group during
the year. TFT-LCD panels and modules maintained the
major source of income and accounted for 84% of the
Group’s revenue during 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

Optics-related products and wearable devices

To step into the optics-related products and wearable
devices market, the Group acquired Perfect Shiny
Technology Limited (“Perfect Shiny”) during the vyear.
Perfect Shiny possesses expertise on liquid crystal on
silicon (“LCoS”) microprojector optical engines, and
engages in the development of applied optics-related
products. The popular optics-related devices that the
Group is currently developing include smart glasses,
virtual reality (“VR”) gaming headsets/head-mount display
(*HMD”) and head-up display (“HUD”) devices installed on
motor vehicles. The Group firstly introduced its new
products to the industry during The 35th HKTDC Hong
Kong Electronics Fair (Autumn Edition) organised by Hong
Kong Trade Development Council in October 2015, one of
the world’s largest electronics marketplaces, and received
much attention among global buyers reflecting the
popularity of such new products with a broad market
prospect.

In January 2015, the Group subscribed for certain
preferred shares of Mobvoi Inc. (“Mobvoi”). In February
2015, the Group further established strategic cooperation
with  Mobvoi. In October 2015, Google Inc. (“Google”)
(through its affiliate) subscribed for another round of new
preferred shares of Mobvoi. It is believed that the
technologies of voice recognition, natural language
processing, mobile search and recommendation system
offered by Mobvoi will complement the developing
wearable optics-related products of the Group.

OUTLOOK

The operators in China have been focusing on the
increasing popularity of 4G services going forward.
Simultaneously, the process of mobile phones upgrading
within China creates room for the expansion of the mobile
market. With well-established relationships with suppliers,
sufficient experience and industry knowledge of the
management, the Group stays positive for a sustainable
momentum.

Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report
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According to the forecast of a leading market research
firm in the industry, the shipment volume of VR products
in 2016 is expected to grow by 476% as compared to
2015. Further, a document issued in November 2015 by
the State Council of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) mentioned that the PRC government would
support the development of wearable devices. This would
provide a strong base for related businesses in the PRC
and would boost much confidence in the market.

The prospect of optic-related wearable devices is
anticipated to be bright and is expected to be a growth
drive for the Group. The Group is confident about the
diversified businesses for the coming vyears and will
continue to seek opportunities in the market so as to
enhance the profitability of the Group.

Appreciation

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business partners
and customers for their constant support and trust over
the years. | would also like to extend my appreciation to
the management team and staff members for their
considerable contributions and dedication. | am proud to
look forward to a brighter future of business development
with the commitment from all of the aforementioned.

Cheng Wai Tak
Chairman
Perfect Optronics Limited

Hong Kong
15 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®E DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the trading of display
components of electronics, which are the major
components of display technology used for mobile
phones. It also processes some of the products which it
trades.

China has gone through economy downturn pressure with
its GDP growth rate hitting six years low in 2015. Mobile
phone industry went through a challenging period under
the impact of crisis-ridden economy, keen competition,
and the cut back of subsidies on the purchase of mobile
phones by main telecommunications services providers in
the PRC.

During the vyear, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$1,274,174,000, decreased slightly by
approximately 2% as compared with 2014. The Group
spent much effort on cultivating certain new models of
panels in the market and diversifying its product mix
during the first half of 2015. These new models of panels
became popular and widely used in the market during the
second half of 2015, which provided a significant
contribution on the results of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2015. Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year amounted to
approximately HK$27,732,000, representing an increase of
approximately 6% as compared with 2014.

Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report
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Revenue from the Group’s display products segment
amounted to approximately HK$1,272,975,000 in 2015,
decreased slightly by 2%, as compared with
approximately HK$1,299,154,000 in 2014. Major products
included in the display products segment were thin film
transistor liquid crystal display (“TFT-LCD”) panels and
modules, driver integrated circuits (“ICs”) and polarisers.
The Group’s sales of TFT-LCD panels and modules,
including both traded and processed by the Group,
amounted to approximately HK$1,076,227,000 during the
year, increased by 7% as compared to approximately
HK$1,001,960,000 in 2014. The Group widened its
revenue base and began to trade more unprocessed new
products, such as TFT-LCD modules during the year. Also
thanks to the success of the Group’s introduction certain
new models of panels into the market, the Group’s sales
of TFT-LCD panels and modules showed an increase of
7% during the year. Such increase largely alleviated the
impact of the decrease in sales of driver ICs during the
year and led to a slight decrease in the overall revenue.
Due to the weak demand and keen competition in the
market, revenue from driver ICs decreased by 37%, from
approximately HK$249,616,000 in 2014 to approximately
HK$156,180,000 during the year. The Group’s sales of
polarisers recorded an improvement from approximately
HK$29,377,000 during 2014 to approximately
HK$31,436,000 during the year, representing a 7%
increase, which was mainly attributable to the
improvement in technology of the polarisers sold.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE DN

In response to the intensified industry competition in the
mobile industry, the Group has been committed to
optimizing its core trading business of display
components of electronics and decisively broadened its
product portfolio. During the year, the Group stepped into
emerging and booming optics-related wearable devices
market which enabled the Group to seize the enormous
business opportunities. The Group acquired the entire
equity interest of Perfect Shiny Technology Limited
(“Perfect Shiny”) during the year. Perfect Shiny and its
subsidiaries (“Perfect Shiny Group”) primarily focuses on
the design, development, production and sales of liquid
crystal on silicon (“LCoS”) microprojector optical engines,
and the design and development of applied optics-related
products including virtual reality (“VR”) gaming headsets/
head-mount display (“HMD”) and head-up display (“HUD”)
devices. Since the Group’s optics-related products
business was still in developing stage, the Group’s
revenue from optics products segment amounted to
approximately HK$1,199,000 (2014: HK$341,000). As a
strategic investment, the Group subscribed for certain
preferred shares of Mobvoi Inc. (“Mobvoi”) in January
2015. Mobvoi and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the business of developing and providing voice search
systems on mobile, smart wearable, and other devices.
Mobvoi’s core technology includes voice recognition,
natural language processing, mobile search and
recommendation system. In February 2015, the Group and
Perfect Shiny Group also established strategic
cooperation with Mobvoi for designing, developing and
launching smart glasses and HUD products in the market.
Leveraging such strategic cooperation with Mobvoi, the
Group is confident in enhancing the attractiveness of its
own products by integration with Mobvoi's mature
technologies. The current products of Mobvoi such as
Chumenwenwen (a mobile intelligent voice search app that
can be used on Android, iOS, Google Glass, and Android
Wear smart watches) will also be key and beneficial to the
development of the Group’s products. Furthermore, in
October 2015, Mobvoi completed the subscription by
Google Inc. (“Google”) (through its affiliate) for another
round of new preferred shares of Mobvoi which represent
a minority shareholding in Mobvoi. The management
believes that such investment by Google will enable
Mobvoi to elevate its technologies, and the Group’s overall
competitiveness can also be greatly enhanced and
consolidated through its cooperation with Mobvoi.

Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group is confident on its trendy
products including smart glasses, VR headsets, HMD and
HUD devices, and is considering various forms of
application of those products, such as combination with
aerial camera. It is believed that these products would be
another of wave of popular hi-tech consumer products
and the Group’s applied optics-related products business
would benefit from this trend. Perfect Shiny Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited was established in January 2016 to
further capture the development of this market in the
PRC.

Meanwhile, the mobile phone market is expected to grow
steadily in the future. The trend of replacement for high-
end devices and the increasing popularity of 4G services
in the PRC are expected to continue to lead the demand
for mobile phones and benefit the mobile phone display
components industry. The Group will continue to grasp the
opportunities brought about by wearable technology and
applied optics-related products, and maintain its leading
market position in mobile phone display components
market, so as to attain greater financial returns to the
shareholders of the Company.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Global economic condition

A slowdown in the global economy, including the PRC
economic climate, which has been one of the major
markets for display products, would affect the results of
the Group. A decrease in market demand may put
significant downward pressure on the average selling
prices. Reduced corporate and commercial activity also
has a negative impact on the demand for and prices of
the Group’s products. If the economy continues to grow at
a slower rate, or experience a prolonged recession, the
Group’s business and results of operations would be
adversely affected.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFN®RDMN

Financial risks

The Group’s activities expose to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. Details of which are set out in Note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s financial statements and its notes, which
are included in this report.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 amounted to approximately HK$1,274,174,000, which
decreased slightly by approximately 2% as compared to
approximately HK$1,299,495,000 in 2014. The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to the decrease in sales of driver
ICs attributable to the keen competition in the market.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales during the year primarily consisted of
purchase costs, processing and subcontracting charges,
scrap loss, provision for obsolete inventories,
transportation charges and other direct costs. The
Group’s cost of sales decreased by approximately 3%
from approximately HK$1,208,228,000 for the year ended
31 December 2014 to approximately HK$1,177,343,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2015, which was mainly due
to the decrease in purchase costs associated with the
decrease in revenue.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

Despite of the slightly drop in revenue of the Group in
2015, the increase in the Group’s gross profit margin from
7.0% in 2014 to 7.6% in 2015 led to the Group’s gross
profit amount for the year increased by approximately 6%
to approximately HK$96,831,000 as compared with the
year ended 31 December 2014. The increase in overall
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the increase
in sales of certain hot models of TFT-LCD panels, which
bargained for higher margin, during the year.

Other losses, net

Net other losses of approximately HK$1,749,000 was
recorded during the year (2014: HK$238,000). The balance
mainly comprised of the exchange losses on the Group’s
Renminbi bank deposits arising from the depreciation of
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars during the year.

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses increased
by approximately 8% from approximately HK$15,076,000
in 2014 to approximately HK$16,354,000 in 2015, mainly
due to the expansion of the Group’s sales office in the
PRC and the increase in staff costs.

General and administrative expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses for the
year amounted to approximately HK$37,123,000,
representing an approximately 9% increase as compared
with 2014 of approximately HK$33,992,000. The increase
in general and administrative expenses was mainly due to
the increase in staff costs attributable to the increase in
average headcount; and the increase in professional fees
incurred in relation to the investment in Mobvoi and the
acquisition of Perfect Shiny during the year.
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/Y F 1 915,076,000 TiE =2 - T —AF W4
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Research and development expenses

The Group’s research and development (“R&D”) expenses,
which amounted to approximately HK$9,256,000 in 2015,
representing an approximately 89% increase as compared
with 2014 of approximately HK$4,900,000. The increase
was mainly due to more resources were put into the R&D
of the Group’s new optics products during the year and
the fact that Shinyoptics Corporation (“Shinyoptics”) (being
an associate at that time) was accounted for using the
equity method of accounting upto the point that it
became a subsidiary of Perfect Shiny Group in early
September 2014 such that the Group’s R&D expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2014 did not include most
of the R&D costs incurred by Shinyoptics.

Finance costs, net

Net finance costs of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$322,000 (2014: HK$1,860,000),
representing a decrease by approximately 83% as
compared with 2014. Such decrease was due to the
increase in interest income and decrease in interest
expense on bank advance from factored receivables.

Share of loss of an associate/loss on re-measurement
of associate to acquisition date fair value in business
combination achieved in stages

Share of loss of an associate of approximately
HK$953,000 and loss on re-measurement of associate to
acquisition date fair value in business combination
achieved in stages in the amount of approximately
HK$2,028,000 recorded during the year ended 31
December 2014 were related to Shinyoptics. No such
balances were recorded during the year because
Shinyoptics had been accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Group since September 2014,
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Income tax expense

Income tax expense of the Group during the year
primarily represents income tax incurred in Hong Kong.
The decrease in income tax expense was mainly due to
the fact that the losses related to the associate in 2014,
including the share of loss of an associate of
approximately HK$953,000 and the loss on re-
measurement of associate to acquisition date fair value in
business combination achieved in stages of approximately
HK$2,028,000, were not tax deductible.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
year amounted to approximately HK$27,732,000,
representing an increase of approximately 6% as
compared with 2014 of approximately HK$26,148,000
which was mainly attributable to the improvement in gross
profit during the year; and the fact that a non-recurring
item of loss on re-measurement of associate to acquisition
date fair value in business combination achieved in stages
was recorded in 2014.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE TEHKRBIEE
INDICATORS

The financial key performance indicators are analysed as F Z B RIBIEZHMOT :
follows:

Year ended
31 December
BEt-HA=t—8H
tEE
Percentage change
Note 2015 2014 Increase/(decrease)
BALLEE
Wi aF SE-RF ek #in,/ (e )
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
FINANCIAL PERFORMANGCE BBRR
Revenue ' ON 1,274,174 1,299,495 2)%
Gross profit margin (%) E £ (%) 7.6% 7.0% 0.6 percentage point
06 EED 2
Earnings before interest, income tax, K& B + FriE%: - 0] 34,869 35,288 1%
depreciation and amortisation TERBEHEARE
(“EBITDA") ([EBITDAJ)
EBITDA margin (%) EBITDA X (%) (ii) 2.7% 2.7% -
Profit for the year FEFH 25,442 25,173 1%
Profit attributable to equity holders AR Az FA A 27,732 26,148 6%
of the Company JE 16 8
Return on total assets (%) BEERHE (%) (il 5.1% 5.9% (0.8) percentage point
0.8 EAE D2
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) A% 34 %5 @ ¥R & (%) (iv) 10.5% 10.9% (0.4) percentage point
0.4) HE5 B
Basic earnings per share FREXREF HK1.87 cents  HK1.80 cents 4%
(HK cents) (B 1.87 #Al 1.80 &1l
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As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
Percentage change
Note 2014 Increase/(decrease)
BALES
st —T—-mE #Zm,/ i)
HK$'000
FAET

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS TERBER
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeZEED 127,953 112,436 14%
Net current assets MEEEFH 240,752 266,021 9)%
Total assets BEEHRE 496,002 423,296 17%
Bank borrowings RITEK 31,200 4714 (34)%
Total liabilities afERR 216,273 166,159 30%
Equity attributable to equity holders AR FEZFH A A 264,481 238,811 11%

of the Company FE(E =

Total equity BB 279,729 257,137 9%
Current ratio (times) B () ) 2.2 times 2.9 times (0.7) times
2.2 1& 2.9 & 0.7) 5
Quick ratio (times) B = (fF) (vi) 1.8 times 1.9 times (0.1) times
1.8 1 1.9 & 0.1) 15
Gearing ratio (%) BEARBLE%) (vii) 11.2% 18.3% (7.1) percentage points
(71) BE D&
Debt-to-asset ratio (%) BEEELE%) (vii) 6.3% 11.1% (4.8) percentage points

4.8) EEDE

Notes:

(i) EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes “Share of (i)
loss of an associate” and “Loss on re-measurement of associate
to acquisition date fair value in business combination achieved in

stages”

(i) EBITDA margin = EBITDA/Revenue

(iif) Return on total assets = Profit for the year/Total assets

(iv) Return on shareholders’ equity = Profit attributable to equity holders (iv)
of the Company/Equity

B 5t -

HE-Z-—NEF+-RA=+—HILFE ZEBITDABE
(DiE—MEERRzBRIMDBREKRZEBLS
HREFTEREARNRINBAMAABEREEZ
18]

(ii) EBITDA X =EBITDA, /4 A

iy BEERBRR-FEMNH EELSE

BREREBR=ARAERFEAREFEKAF
BERAAREER

attributable to equity holders

of the Company

(v) Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities

(vi) Quick ratio = (Current assets — Inventories)/Current liabilities

(vii) Gearing ratio = Total interest-bearing debt/Total equity

(viii) Debt-to-asset ratio = Total interest-bearing debt/Total assets

(v) MBLE-RBEE KD AE
Vi) BEBLE=(RHEE — FE)/ RBEE
wiy EEBBHE=-FREBEE BHRAE

wii) BEEELER=HEEKEE SELE

BXXEBEHER®XAT 2015 F3§
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES #EBESLRMKEER

The Group’s funds are principally used to finance working AH£EMNESETZAHERNEEESL kK
capital, and the growth and expansion of the Group’'s SBEEERHEFRENEERIERRERES -
operations and sales network. The Group’s principal AEBTENELHRBEAELEELNIRLR
sources of funds are cash generated from operations and $R{TfE K - NEBIRTHER - RITEH MRS
bank borrowings. An analysis of the Group’s bank Z oM :

deposits, bank balances and cash is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2015 2014
—B-EHF Ak
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FTHE T FAET
Total bank deposits, bank balances RITFEHR - RITEHKRK
and cash R 166,024 156,067
Less: Restricted bank deposits included in BCETARBEED
current assets ZREIIRITFR (20,316) (22,230)
Fixed deposits with original maturity REBRB®B=1EA
date more than three months 2 EBFER (17,755) (21,401)
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 127,953 112,436

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank deposits, bank AEBMRITFR  RITEHREReNEDE
balances and cash are denominated in the following JYA T3 E¥EEHE

currencies:
As at 31 December
R+=—H=+—8”

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
United States dollars ETT 122,619 85,649
Renminbi AR #& 22197 42,906
Hong Kong dollars BT 6,966 7,374
New Taiwan dollars etk 14,242 20,138

166,024 156,067

]8 Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report



As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total bank
borrowings comprised bank loans and bank advances for
factored receivables of approximately HK$31,200,000
(2014: HK$15,600,000) and HK$nil (2014: HK$31,541,000)
respectively. The scheduled repayment date of the
Group’s bank borrowings, as set out in the loan
agreements and without considering the effect of any
repayment on demand clauses were as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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RZE—RF+-A=+—8 AEENARTT
ERBEERITERNLRERKAAOIBITRRD
A114931,200,0007% 7t (= Z —PU4F : 15,600,000/%

TTIRZEBT(ZZE— M4 : 31,541,000 7x) « B
FmEE AT EEREREEERFENK

SERITERVASEERNOT

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—8H
2014
HK$ 000
F&TT

Within 1 year 1FE N 31,200 47141
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, all the K-ZE—HAF+_A=+—HBR-ZT—MNF+=
Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in United HA=+—H AEEFAERTEHREGUETE
States dollars. (ERR

The Group’s bank loans as at 31 December 2015 and 31 RZZE—HAF+-_A=+—HR=ZZT—NF+=
December 2014 were fixed interest rate loans. Bank A=+—HB AEKENETERAEETHBEE
advances for factored receivables as at 31 December K °RZE—MNFE+_H= + EI IR FE UL FR
2014 were subject to fixed interest rates. As at 31 HWHRITBFIEELETE -RZE—HFE+A=
December 2015, the Group’s unutilised banking facilities ~+—H ~ $%l5§<ﬁ§ﬁﬁf’ﬁfﬁ%r&ﬂ‘i§ﬁ’ﬂﬂi§bﬁﬁ ) 88

restricted for trade finance purposes amounted to
approximately HK$194.1 million (2014: HK$164.0 million).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital of the Company only comprises ordinary
shares. Save for the allotment and the issue of
163,687,151 new shares by the Company for the
acquisition of Perfect Shiny, there has been no change in
the capital structure of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2015.

1712 B 58 Z 49194,100,000/8 7T (= & — PO 4F -

164,000,000/ 7T) °

BEXER

AR ENERIBELE B - BAQE A% K3
77163,687151 A D AW BB B 5h - B2 =F
—AF+_A=Z+—BLEFE AEENERE
EmEEE o
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the year.

The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring on an ongoing basis with reference to the
financial position of the debtors, past experience and
other factors. The Group performs regular credit
evaluations of its major customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the management closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position and maintains sufficient cash and an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to settle
the payables of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

To help conserve the environment, the Group has
implemented policies to encourage its employees for the
efficient use of energy and resources. Besides, the Group
has internal control measures in place to ensure its
processing service providers to comply with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s management policies, working environment,
career prospects and employees’ benefits have
contributed to building a good employee relations and
employee retention of the Group. The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages commensurate with
industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
employees including medical benefits, social insurance,
provident funds, bonuses and a share option scheme. The
management regularly reviews its employee’s remuneration
packages to ensure they are up to prevailing market
standard.

As at 31 December 2015, the employee headcount of the
Group was 145 (2014: 149) and the total staff costs,
including directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$38,180,000 during the year (2014:
HK$28,998,000).
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The Group has established long term business
relationships with its major suppliers for over 8 to 11
years. The Group has entered into long term supply
framework agreements with these suppliers. The Group
will endeavor to maintain its established relationship with
these existing suppliers.

The Group’s customers are mainly TFT-LCD module
manufacturers based in the PRC. The Group has a well-
established business relationship with these customers
and has gained recognition in the TFT-LCD panel industry
in the PRC.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had pledged its bank
deposits of approximately HK$20,316,000 (2014:
HK$22,230,000) to certain banks in Hong Kong to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in United States dollars, Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and New Taiwan dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the Board will continuously monitor the
related foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments (2014: Nil).
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DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was declared (2014: Nil) during the
year. The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HKO0.5 cent (2014: HKO.5 cent) per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2015 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 13 May 2016.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Save as the Group’s investment in certain preferred
shares of Mobvoi, the Group did not hold any significant
investment in equity interest in any other company as at
31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 24
January 2014 (the “Prospectus”), the Group did not have
other plans for material investments and capital assets as
at 31 December 2015.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
acquired the entire equity interest of Perfect Shiny from
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, a director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Further details of the
acquisition are set out in the Company’s circular to its
shareholders dated 6 March 2015.

Save as disclosed, the Group did not have any material

acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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COMPARISON BETWEEN FUTURE PLANS
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

A comparison of the Group’s business plan as set out in
the Prospectus with actual business progress for the
period from 14 January 2014 (being the Latest Practicable
Date as defined in the Prospectus) to 31 December 2015
(the “Review Period”) is set out below. Capitalised terms
used herein shall have the same meanings as those
defined in the Prospectus unless the content requires

otherwise.

Business objectives for the Review Period

EEAENEEER
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Actual Business Progress for the Review Period

EENENERELER

(@) Establishment or acquisition of panel processing plants in the PRC to expand our business vertically

RPBERLHFBWBERMIBUAEERR XK

Perform technology and capacity forecast
and planning
EITHE T R E e TE R & R E
Perform due diligence studies on target e
panel processing plant(s) or rules and
compliance of operating panel processing
plant(s) in the PRC
HERERMIBEETRBEEXFE
REGEER NI E R RaRER
|dentify potential equipment supplier and e
carrying out evaluation
) &8 R 1 e B AT A
Confirm expansion plan for cutting e
processing plant

RYEN I LR 5 &) % & &5t &
Commence acquisition or establishment of
cutting processing plant
7 R W B 3 AR SZ YD B i TR B
Purchase equipment (if establish cutting
processing plant)
BERE KB MIKE)
Recruit staff
BEET
Perform trail run for cutting processing
plant
PEIMIHERFASE
Commence acquisition or establishment of
slimming processing plant(s)
7l Fi M5B 3 A 2 SE AL i TR B

Technology and capacity forecast and planning
had been performed

B 1T RN & E A TR ORI K AR &l

A potential existing panel processing plant had
been identified and related due diligence works
are commenced
ERGE—MEBERTHRAEKRMNIKSE @ I
EREBBEZEBRES TF

The Group was identifying potential equipment
supplier

rEBEEEDEEEREHRER

The Group had decided to expand through
acquisition of panel processing plant
REBERTEFEBKEERINIKEERE
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Business objectives for the Review Period

EEBENELER

° Purchase equipment (if establish slimming
processing plant)
BERE K E N THE)

° Purchase additional equipment for the
cutting processing plant
RYVEIIN TR E 5 5Nk

o Commence full operation of cutting
processing plant(s)

PIEI I T = F i 2 &1

° Perform trial run for slimming processing
plant
SEAL I T M P R B ol B

Actual Business Progress for the Review Period

CEAENERERER

Expansion of our sales support team in the PRC to provide high quality services to our customers

BEATEHEXEER OEFRUEERY
° Recruit staff
BEET
° Continue to recruit staff if necessary
FEREETIUNEE)

° Arrange training to staff
ZHETIHE

° Organise marketing activities
EREMGHEELDY

The Group had recruited additional sales and
engineering staff to strengthen its sales
support team in the PRC
AEBERBRIIHERIEABABRIEER
B A 8 6 S8R B B

Relevant training activities had been provided
to new and existing staff
ERFIABEREETREMEEINED
The Group had continuously organised various
marketing activities to promote sales and
strengthen its market position
REBEFREA B ZIAT IS B S B UL i
&I N o5& E 55 b s

Expansion of our product portfolio to strengthen our product offerings

EEEmAE MBRERME
° Explore new products and suppliers

B #0 T EE an SR (L B S

° Evaluate new products and perform due
diligence on new supplier if necessary
AEHEMRENMHERETEREDS

(WE=E
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The Group had introduced new products, such
as medium sized display products for
automotives and tablets; and new suppliers in
the PRC

REBESIAFEM  WRBBRFIRERHF
A BR R EE o S P BB R (PR R

Due diligence works on new suppliers had been
performed
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company offered 330,000,000 shares for subscription
by way of placing in 2014 (the “Placing”). The net
proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$76
million. During the Review Period, the net proceeds from
the Placing had been applied as follows:
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FERERR

/NN -

A

Planned use of
proceeds as
stated in the

T - NFFEBREEFANRE
330,000,000/ &t At R 8 (TEL &) - BE B AT
B TEHE 476,000,000/ 7T R LI EEEAR - AP
EEFEHEEARTASE:

Actual use of

Prospectus proceeds during
during the the Review
Review Period Period
BREEH
B RER B RER
5] /&8 H R 51 /68 £ R
e AR ERAR
HK$’million HK$’million
BEER BEER
Establishment or acquisition of panel R B &K
processing plants in the PRC to expand  WEERINITHE -
business vertically LA B R R ¥ 40 —
Repayment of bank loans BERITEXR 17 17
Expansion of sales support team in the BAFEIHEE
PRC to provide high quality services to TEER mEP
customers REHEBERD 8 8
Expansion of product portfolio to EEEmMASE
strengthen product offerings hnog 2 o it e 4 4
General working capital —REEES 7 7
76 36
Notes: K a# -

The business objectives as stated in the Prospectus were based on the
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group at the
time of preparing the Prospectus. The uses of proceeds were applied in
accordance with the actual development of the market:

1. The Group had identified a potential existing panel processing plant
and related due diligence work had commenced. Negotiations with
the target plant were still in progress. Therefore, proceeds applied
in this area were less than expected.

2. The remaining net proceeds as at 31 December 2015 had been
placed on interest-bearing deposits in banks in Hong Kong.
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PEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, save as
set out below, the Company has adopted the principles
and the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code, except the deviation as disclosed under the
section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
below.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT
FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this annual report, the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) comprises three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The composition of the Board during the year
and up to the date of this annual report was as follows:

Executive Directors:
HITEE:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman)
BREEEE(FE)

Mr. Liu Ka Wing

BRRtsE

Mr. Tse Ka Wing

WR KT

Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai
BRELE

Independent non-executive Directors:
BUIHITESE

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John
ERBEE

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu

mEBREE

Mr. Li Shui Yan

B RE

The biographical details of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 43 to
45 of this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among members of the
Board.
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TEERBE

FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries; setting
objectives and business development plans; monitoring the
performance of the senior management; and assuming
responsibility for corporate governance. The management,
under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the Company’s
operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure
effective performance of the Board’s responsibilities.

The management provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates in accordance with the code provision
C.1.2 of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis by the
Company.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. All minutes of
the Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail of
the matters considered by the Board and the decisions
made.
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Four regular board meetings were held during the year. Its
composition and the attendance of individual Directors at
these board meetings were as follows

Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

EZeRNFRRTIRERGH o HKE RER
ExHhFEEFeeRZBRE T

Number of regular
board meetings

Name attended/held
HE S BITESRN

e EZge3 A
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman) BEREE(FE) 4/4
Mr. Liu Ka Wing Bmeitt 4/4
Mr. Tse Ka Wing WREFA&E

(appointed on 26 March 2015) (R=ZE—RAF=A=-F+AEZM 4/4
Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai BRELE

(retired on 8 May 2015) (R=ZZE—RFHANBRMD) 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors: BUHHTESE:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John EEBEE 4/4
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu EEBEE 4/4
Mr. Li Shui Yan B LA 4/4

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Except for the service contract with Mr. Tse Ka Wing,
which commenced on 26 March 2015, each of the
executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on the 7 February 2014, the listing date of
the shares of the Company (the “Listing Date”). Either
party has the right to give not less than three months’
written notice to terminate the respective service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on the Listing
Date.
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TRERME

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by the shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment. By virtue of
article 112 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board shall have power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director but the
number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the
shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to
article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not 3 or
a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 vyears. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated
office.

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Liu Ka Wing and Mr. Wong Yik Chung
John will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors representing more
than one-third of the Board and with at least one of
whom having appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the GEM Listing Rules for the year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Under the current management structure of the Company,
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (“Mr. Cheng”) is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. With Mr. Cheng’s extensive
experience in the industry, the Board believes that vesting
the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same person would provide the Company with strong
and consistent leadership, allow for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies, and would be beneficial to the business
prospects and management of the Group.
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TRERME

Although Mr. Cheng performs both the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, the division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is
clearly established. In general, the Chairman is responsible
for supervising the functions and performance of the
Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the management of the business of the Group. The two
roles are performed by Mr. Cheng distinctly. The Board
also considers that the current management structure
does not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company
given the appropriate delegation of the power of the
Board and the effective functions of the independent non-
executive Directors. However, it is the long-term objective
of the Company to have these two roles performed by
separate individuals when suitable candidates are
identified.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of
reference, three board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties. The
written terms of reference for each Board committee are
in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and
code provision C.3 of the CG Code. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, who has the
appropriate accounting and financial related management
expertise and serves as the chairman of the audit
committee, Mr. Wong Chi Chiu and Mr. Li Shui Yan.
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The primary duties of the audit committee are (but
without limitation) to assist the Board in providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of our Company’s
financial reporting process, internal control and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The audit committee held four meetings during the year.
Its composition and attendance of individual members at
these audit committee meetings are as follows:
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Number of audit

committee

meetings

Members of the audit committee attended/held
HEBITH

EREES

EREBEERE BERHEY
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John ERBLE 4/4
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu EEBEE 4/4
Mr. Li Shui Yan T B LA 4/4

During the vyear, the audit committee reviewed the
Company’s annual financial statements, interim and
quarterly reports; discussed the internal control of the
Group; met with the independent external auditors and
reviewed reports from the independent external auditors
regarding their audit on annual financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1 of the CG Code. The
remuneration committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, who serves as the
chairman of the remuneration committee, Mr. Cheng Wai
Tak and Mr. Wong Yik Chung John.
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The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Directors on the policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (i) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; (iiij reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Directors from time to time.

During the year, one remuneration committee meeting was
held for, inter alia, reviewing the policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management. The
remuneration committee satisfied the existing arrangement
and there was no recommendation to the Board on
change of such policy and structure. All the members of
the remuneration committee, including Mr. Wong Chi Chiu,
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, had
attended that meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Each of the Directors will receive a remuneration which is
subject to adjustment to be reviewed by the remuneration
committee and be determined at the discretion of the
Board. The Company’s policy concerning the
remuneration of the Directors is that the amount of
remuneration is determined by reference to the relevant
Director’'s experience, responsibilities, workload and the
time devoted to the Group. The Group has adopted
incentive bonus schemes and continues to maintain these
schemes, seeking to align the financial well-being of the
Group with that of the employees, and to retain the
Directors and staff of high caliber.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision A.5 of the CG Code. The
nomination committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, who serves as the
chairman of the nomination committee, Mr. Wong Yik
Chung John and Mr. Li Shui Yan.

The primary function of the nomination committee
includes making recommendations to the Board to fill
vacancies on the same, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing of the
structure, size and composition of the Board.

During the year, one nomination committee meeting was
held for, inter alia, reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and board diversity policy as
well as discussing matters regarding the retirement and
re-election of Directors and succession planning for
Directors and assesses the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and considering the appointment
of Mr. Tse Ka Wing as an executive Director. All the
members of the nomination committee, including Mr.
Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Li
Shui Yan, attended that meeting.
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TERERMS

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including (but not
limited to) gender, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and educational background.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to
implement the Diversity Policy and review such objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and
ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. At present, the Board has not set any
measurable objectives.

The nomination committee will review the Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried
out by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of
reference adopted by the Board, which include (a) develop
and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management of the Company and its subsidiaries; (c)
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) review
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the corporate governance report of the
Company required to be prepared pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules; and (f) consider, review and decide any
other topics, as authorised by the Board.

During the year, the Board reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

During the year, the Company provided training materials
for all the Directors to keep them abreast of the latest
development of legal, regulatory and corporate
governance. The Company has received the records of
training from all Directors.

The Group, together with its compliance adviser and legal
advisers, continuously update the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for each
financial period to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their
financial reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s
report attached to the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 in this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration
paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided is set out below:

B BT B &

HE_ZT—RAF+T-A=T—BILEE  ®MARE
HEH B RIEFERBE BN T 2 K BK
BEREEBROMESEIIMT

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
P 42 44 AR 7% B EAEME
HK$°000

FE T

Audit services E R 1,550
Non-audit services IEEFT R 179
Total @t 1,729

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. The
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group, covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions and has considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experiences, training programmes and budget of the
Company accounting and financial reporting function for
the year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and
investors with high standards of disclosure and financial
transparency. The Board is committed to provide clear
and detailed information of the Group to its shareholders
in a timely manner and on a regular basis, through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the Company’s
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and other
members of the respective committees are available to
answer questions of the shareholders at the general
meetings. The Company recognises the importance of
maintaining on-going communications with the
shareholders and encourages them to attend general
meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and
senior management.

The Company maintains a website at
http://www.perfect-optronics.com where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
useful information are posted and available for access by
the public investors.
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2015 General meetings

At the annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meeting held in 2015, separate resolutions were proposed
by the chairman in respect of each separate issue,
including re-election of directors and approval of
connected transaction, and voted by way of poll. The
Company announced the results of the poll in the manner
prescribed under the GEM Listing Rules. The respective
chairman of the Board, audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee has attended the
annual general meeting and the members of independent
board committee has attended the extraordinary general
meeting held in 2015 approving the connected transaction
to ensure effective communication with shareholders. The

—E-TIERRAE

R-FB-—AFRETZBRRBERNERBEERER
AL EFEMEFUFTH BRERESFK
HERERS  REBURBR AUKRET
KR - ARBRIFBIER EHRAUBREZ T
AEMKREER -EFE BEREES  HM
ZEELREAZEERIFCHERRBFA
& BUBEELZBEEENBCHER-_FT—1F
BIOZBRRFEIASHEFERS - BRER
RIEHERER BER_FT-AFRIZK
RAEGZHFERIFEMT :

attendance
meetings held in 2015 is set out below:

record of the Directors at the general

Number of
general
meetings
Name attended/held
HE BT
o R KERE
Executive Directors: HiTESE:
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman) BEEEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BmirE 2/2
Mr. Tse Ka Wing FRETAE
(appointed on 26 March 2015) (RZE—RF=-AZ+AEZF) 2/2
Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai BRERE
(retired on 8 May 2015) (R=—Z—RFHANHEME) 0/2
Independent non-executive Directors: BIIFHTESF
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John EEBEE 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu mEBEE 2/2
Mr. Li Shui Yan B KL 2/2
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and to put forward
proposal at general meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
SO0 in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Article 113 of the articles of association of the Company
provides that no person other than a retiring Director,
shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registration office. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholders of the
Company to propose a person for election as director is
posted on the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
by mail to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board’s purview to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to
the Chief Executive Officer.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Tse Ka Wing (“Mr. Tse”), is an
employee of the Company. He was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters. The
biographical details of Mr. Tse are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Biographical details of directors and

senior management

ESNGREEEBAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, aged 46, was appointed as director of
the Company on 13 June 2013. He is the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Cheng is also a founder of the Group. He has been in
the business of trading TFT-LCD components for over 12
years and has established close relationships with various
suppliers. He is responsible for formulating the Group’s
overall strategic planning and development, and
management of the Group’s business. He graduated from
Hong Kong Baptist University with a bachelor of science in
combined sciences in mathematical science degree. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng is also a director of all of the
Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, the British
Virgin Islands, Samoa and Taiwan.

Mr. Liu Ka Wing, aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 18 June 2013. He joined the
Group in November 2008. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s administrative functions and
compliance issue; and assisting in the management of the
Group’s business. Mr. Liu has about 21 vyears of
experience in accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in various certified public accountants firm and
corporations, responsible for general accounting functions.

Mr. Tse Ka Wing, aged 40, joined the Group in May 2013
and is the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company. He was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 26 March 2015. He is primarily responsible
for the financial management, supervision of financial
reporting and corporate finance matters of the Group. Mr.
Tse graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor of business administration degree. He is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Tse is a professional accountant
with over 18 years of experience in accounting and had
previously served as a senior manager of an international
firm of certified public accountants. Mr. Tse was appointed in
January 2015 and retired in May 2015 as an independent
non-executive director of China Jicheng Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Jicheng Umbrella Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 1027), a company whose shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Biographical details of directors and senior management

EENRSAREEEBAES

Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai, aged 44, joined the Group in
2005 and was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 18 June 2013. He graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor of engineering
in electronic engineering degree. Mr. Cheng has over 23
years of experience in the field of electronic engineering.
He was retired as an executive Director on 8 May 2015.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, aged 49, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 20 January 2014 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company.

He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated from the
University of Melbourne, Australia with a degree of
bachelor of commerce. He was a member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants in
February 1992 and was admitted as an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 1997. Mr. Wong has more than 22 years of
experience in auditing and corporate finance work. Over
the past three years, he served as independent non-
executive directors for the following companies listed on (i)
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely Western Securities
Co. Ltd. (stock code: 002673), and (i the Stock
Exchange, namely Golden Resources Development
International Limited (stock code: 677); Beijing North Star
Company Limited (stock code: 588) and Biosino Bio-
Technology and Science Incorporation (stock code: 8247).
He is currently serving as independent non-executive
directors for the following companies which are listed on
the Stock Exchange, namely EcoGreen International Group
Limited (stock code: 2341), Long Ji Tai He Holding Limited
(stock code: 1281) and Chanco International Group
Limited (stock code: 264); and Yang Guang Co. Ltd (stock
code: 000608), which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.
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Biographical details of directors and senior management

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 20
January 2014 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Wong graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a degree of bachelor of engineering in
electrical engineering. He further received his master of
science in engineering (building services engineering)
degree from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was
registered as a chartered engineer (CEng) at the
Engineering Council in April 1998 and was registered as a
registered professional engineer in electrical discipline at
the Engineers Registration Board in July 1999. He has
been a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology since February 1998 and the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers since May 1998. Mr. Wong has
over 23 years of experience in the engineering industry.
Currently, he is a director of Kin Ying Contracting Limited.

Mr. Li Shui Yan, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 20
January 2014 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from
National Chengchi University in Taiwan with a degree of
bachelor of business administration. Mr. Li has more than
18 years of experience in corporate finance. Currently, he
is the managing director of Dakin Capital Limited, a
licensed corporation to carry out type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong.

Note: The executive Directors of the Company are also

the senior management of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

EZEWA

The Directors of the Company present their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 13 June
2013 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) were listed (the
“Listing”) on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 7 February 2014 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
During the vyear, the Group acquired Perfect Shiny
Technology Limited (“Perfect Shiny”). Other than this
development, there were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 25 of this annual
report which forms part of this directors’ report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental

policies and performance are set out on page 20 of this
annual report which form part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report

=—F

ARBEFEN2IFERSERNBRE_Z
AET A=t -HLEFEZEEZMBRE

TREHR

ARBR-_ZB-—=ZFAT=ERBEFEFER
AERHAEREEMA LA —HERRBERA
A e ARABO (RO )R _F—mF-A+H
(ETEHMDREEBMAERSMERAR (B
FrDRIEIRTEIER D) Em (LMD -

TEXBRREXBEE

ARBZ T BEBRIERER - WEBARKNE
ZEBHINRNGEMBREM 14 FR K
SEWBEMHMEARAB(ERF]D  BribBE 3
RLASN - MER  AEEXTEXHHEERES

(BAERAGIDMRRE 2AEBBEE_F
—hFE+T-A=T-HUEFEZXREOE 2%
AEEEH s TE/EBRAEERZEML - A
REMAREXH 2 RRER  HRAFHES
EXE[EEEMmEONIAN  EBRAEES

AN ERAEBERBERRERBZHIE - &
MAFHRE20H - HBENAEZERE 80 -

FERDIK

AEEZAREREHIINGE2EE S

B
S



The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.5
cent (2014: HKO.5 cent) per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2015. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or about 6 June 2016 to
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 13 May
2016. Based on 1,483,687,151 ordinary shares of the
Company in issue as of the date of this report, the total
dividend will amount to approximately HK$7,418,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2015 amounted to approximately HK$481,308,000 (2014:
HK$91,130,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$200,000 (2014: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group, as extracted
from the Prospectus and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the years ended 31
December 2013, 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2015, and restated as appropriate, is set out on page 176
of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
did not redeem any of its shares, and neither did the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any
of the Company’s shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was approved and adopted
pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder
passed on 20 January 2014 (the “Adoption Date”). The
following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The terms of the Share Option Scheme
are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”).

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the Participants (as
defined below) and for such other purposes as the
Board may approve from time to time.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Board may, at its discretion, invite:

(i) any director of each member of the Group or
of any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”);
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(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity (the “Employee”);

(i)  any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any Employee or any director of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity;

(iv) a company beneficially owned by any Employee
or any director of each member of the Group
or of any Invested Entity;

(v)  any consultant, professional and other adviser
to each member of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including their employees or executives
or any persons, firms or companies proposed
to be appointed for providing such services);

(vi)  any chief executives or substantial shareholders
of the Company;

(vij any supplier, customer, service provider,
business or joint venture partner, contractor, of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(viii) any person who, at the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group or any Invested Entity, provided
that the Board may at its absolute discretion
determine whether or not one falls within the
above categories,

(together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up share options to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price determined in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each
Participant, the Board would take into account such
factors as the Board may at its discretion consider
appropriate.

Duration
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the Adoption Date.
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Timing for exercising option

The period as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and specify in relation to any
particular option holder in his option agreement
during which the option may be exercised (subject to
such restriction on exercisability specified therein),
which shall be not greater than the period
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules from time to
time (which is, as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, a period of 10 years from the
date of the granting of the option).

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of option
offer

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within the period from the date on which
such offer is made by the Board in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme to such date as the
Board may determine and specify in the letter where
such offer is made to a Participant in such form as
the Board may from time to time determine, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee.

Subscription Price

The subscription price in respect of each Share
issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted
hereunder shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of offer, which must be a business day;

(i) a price being the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and

(i)  the nominal value of a Share.
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Maximum number of Shares available for
subscription

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Placing and
the Capitalisation Issue (being 132,000,000 Shares).
The Company may renew this limit at any time,
subject to shareholders’ approval and the issue of a
circular and in accordance with the GEM Listing
Rules provided that the number of shares to be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under all the share
option schemes does not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Company had
132,000,000 share options available to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 8.9% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

Maximum entitlement of Shares of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director of the Company,
or to any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
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excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

DIRECTORS RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company, its parent company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

HITEFE -

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman)
BEEEE(FE)

Mr. Liu Ka Wing

BREEE

Mr. Tse Ka Wing

Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai
BRERE

Independent non-executive Directors:
BUIHITESE

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John
mRAKE

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu

Mr. Li Shui Yan

Fin B4

On 8 May 2015, Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai retired as an
executive Director at the annual general meeting held on
8 May 2015 due to pursuit of his own personal
development.
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By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Liu Ka Wing and Mr. Wong Yik Chung
John will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. Liu Ka Wing and Mr. Wong Yik
Chung John will, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the Board
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Except for the service contract with Mr. Tse Ka Wing
which commenced on 26 March 2015, each of the
executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date and will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving not less than three
months’ prior written notice to the other. They are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting and until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to
enable smooth operation within the Group, the Group
offered competitive remuneration packages (with reference
to market conditions and individual qualifications and
experience) and various in-house training courses. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular
basis.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, market competitiveness,
individual performance and achievement, to the Board for
determination.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 32 and Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

During the year, Rightone Resources Limited (“Rightone”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) to acquire
the entire equity interest in Perfect Shiny (the
“Acquisition”) from Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, a director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Further details of
the transaction are included in Note 2.1.1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, Perfect Display Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy
agreement as tenant with Earn Master Limited (“Earn
Master”) as landlord to lease a premise in Hong Kong at
an annual rental of HK$816,000 for a term of one year
from 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016. Earn Master
was paid a rental fee of HK$816,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: HK$816,000). Earn Master is
wholly owned by the spouse of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak.
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Save for disclosed in this annual report, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or his connected entities
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every
director of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains
directors and officers liability insurance, which gives
appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its
directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 43 to 45 of the annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2015, interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) held by the Directors and chief
executives of the Company which have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the standard of dealings by directors set out
in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

EERFETHRAERAQFHE
AHEBEZENROREERODRE
SHHEER KR

R-E—AF+-_A=+—H8 EFRARA=E
ZTBABRARRSEEMBEEZE(TER
BERBEGA(BEHRBEE])EXVEH
- HERDREST  BEREESFRLH
EIEPIEXVERETR F8D MR E - AHNER
NAIRBTHMEZLR AR BREEERERS
R EKRINZESEXHEERERIERETD
T ROKR) - SR R E 5 & B K ] 535214
Fr#8 7€ - 78 a0 8 1E 5% & ) P 46 89 & ac it A &) 4
wmERE IR IEBAIER ETARRISE5.46E5.67
KB ZESETRS2EAMBKRTE BN
ARB MRS RABIT

Long positions in shares of the Company: RAEQATRGHEE
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of Director Capacity shares held capital
FEERG ANFE BT
BExpng &6 #E RAEABDL
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak Interest in controlled corporation 922,687,151 62.19%
BREEAE REEEER (Note)
(B &t)
Beneficial owner 2,220,000 0.15%
EmEBA
Note: et

These 922,687,151 shares are held by Winful Enterprises Limited (“Winful
Enterprises”), which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak. As such, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 922,687,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had
registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the standard of dealings by
directors set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2015, other than the Director and chief executive of the
Company, the following persons/entities have an interest or
a short position in the shares or the underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were required to be recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO:
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Long position in shares of the Company: REATRGDWEFR:
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name Nature of interests shares held capital
FREERSG AARE BT
=x EmME BA RAEBDE
Winful Enterprises Directly beneficially owned 922,687,151 62.19%
Winful Enterprises EREEHER (Note)
(Kt &t)

Note: Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
these 922,687,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no
other person had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 60.6% (2014: 58.4%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 14.1% (2014: 16.2%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 91.2% (2014: 93.6%) of the
total purchases for the year and purchase from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to approximately
74.2% (2014: 68.5%). From the Listing Date to 17 June
2014, such largest supplier owned 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following connected
and continuing connected transactions, certain details of
which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements
of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Connected transactions

On 22 January 2015, Rightone, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the Agreement to acquire
the entire equity interest in Perfect Shiny from Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak. Mr. Cheng is a director, chief executive officer
and substantial shareholder of the Company and thus is a
connected person of the Company. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the consideration of the Acquisition was
HK$323,000,000. The Acquisition was approved by the
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company by way of poll in the extraordinary general
meeting held on 17 April 2015. The Acquisition was
completed on 30 April 2015. Further details of the
transaction are included in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 29 January 2015, Everon Resources Limited
(“Everon”), Skyteam Resources Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) (“Skyteam”) and Mobvoi Inc.
(“Mobvoi”), amongst others, entered into a series A-2
preferred share purchase agreement (the “Preferred Share
Purchase Agreement”). Since Everon is a company entirely
owned and controlled by Mr. Cheng (a director, chief
executive officer and the controlling shareholder of the
Company), Everon is an associate of Mr. Cheng and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Preferred Share
Purchase Agreement, each of Everon and Skyteam
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 25,213,220 series
A-2 preferred shares of Mobvoi for a consideration of
US$3,000,000. Mobvoi is engaged in the business of
developing and providing voice search systems on mobile,
smart wearable, and other devices in China.

The material related party transactions in relation to the
key management personnel remuneration as disclosed in
Note 30(d) to the consolidated financial statements are
connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 20.31(6) of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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EEEHRE

Continuing connected transaction

The material related party transaction in relation to the
rental fee paid to a related party as disclosed in Note
30(b) to the consolidated financial statements is continuing
connected transactions exempt from reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 20.33(3)(c) of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that those material related party
transactions disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements fall under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as
the case may be) in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
which have complied with the disclosure requirements (if
applicable) in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY’S PLACING

The proceeds from the Company’s issue of 330,000,000
new shares (the “Placing”) at the time of the Listing
amounted to approximately HK$76 million, net of
underwriting fees and other related expenses. Details of
the use of proceeds from the Placing are set out on page
25 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
required by the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

In accordance with Rule 6A19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Grand Vinco Capital Limited
(“Vinco”) as the compliance adviser of the Company. As
notified by Vinco, neither Vinco nor its directors or
employees or associates had any interest in the securities
of the Company or any other companies of the Group
(including options or rights to subscribe for such
securities) as at 31 December 2015.
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The compliance adviser’s appointment is for a period
commencing on the Listing Date and ending on the date
on which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the
GEM Listing Rules in respect of the despatch of its
annual report of the financial results for the second full
financial year commencing after the Listing Date, i.e. for
the year ending 31 December 2016, or until the
compliance adviser agreement is terminated, whichever is
earlier. Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement,
Vinco received and will receive fees for acting as the
compliance adviser of the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

All the independent non-executive Directors were
delegated with the authority to review on an annual basis
the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
given by each of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Winful
Enterprises, the controlling shareholders of the Company
(collectively, the “Covenantors”) in favour of the Company
dated 20 January 2014 (the “Non-Competition Deed”).
The Covenantors has provided to the Company all
information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors and the Covenantors
have confirmed to the Company that each of the
Covenantors and his/its associates have not breached the
terms of the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed. All independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that they are not aware of any non-
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed by the
Covenantors since the effective date of the Non-
Competition Deed and up to the date of this report.

Details of the Non-Competition Deed have been set out in
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated
24 January 2014.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year or subsisted
at the end of the year.
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EETEHRS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 26 to 42 of the annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Perfect Optronics Limited

Cheng Wai Tak
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

_a

pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PERFECT OPTRONICS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 65 to 175, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

BXXEBEHER®XAT 2015 F3§

63



Independent Auditor’'s Report
BARZHMRE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015,
and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RETHEWA K

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-—AF+-A=-+—BLFE

2015 2014
—ZE—-RfF —ET—F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
kg TER FAT
(Restated)
(E5)
Revenue N 6 1,274,174 1,299,495
Cost of sales 85 & X AR 8 (1,177,343) (1,208,228)
Gross profit EX 96,831 91,267
Other losses, net HihEEFRE 7 (1,749) (238)
Distribution and selling expenses 73 88 & SH & F 2 8 (16,354) (15,076)
General and administrative expenses — & M7 X 8 (37,123) (33,992)
Research and development expenses 7% & B %% f &% 8 (9,256) (4,900)
Operating profit KEFHE 32,349 37,061
Finance income RPN 1,101 690
Finance costs VB ER (1,423) (2,550)
Finance costs, net BB R FE 10 (322) (1,860)
Share of loss of an associate DE—EEE AR ZEBEE 1 — (953)
Loss on re-measurement of associate 7 & B E K 2 2754 G
to acquisition date fair value in EIFTEHE AR R
business combination achieved in BRBMARBEMESE
stages 2 1B 11 = (2,028)
Profit before income tax R AT 45 B 50 A8 32,027 32,220
Income tax expense Frigii & A 12 (6,585) (7,047)
Profit for the year FERE 25,442 25173
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mEk &
Items that may be reclassified BEE AT EF DI Wz
subsequently to income statement ZHEA
Change in value of available-for-sale At HELRIE E 2 BE
financial assets b= 7,041 )
Currency translation differences SN E E R (1,822) (1,868)
Total comprehensive income for FEXHEKZAHE
the year 30,661 23,300
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEREWER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-AF+_A=+—HLFE

2015 2014
—ZE—-RfF —E-MmF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
kg TER FAT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Profit for the year attributable to: FEMNBEBER:

Equity holders of the Company RARIEZFBA 27,732 26,148
Non-controlling interests I 1 B 5 (2,290) (975)
25,442 25,173

Total comprehensive income for the FEZHWFHAEE

year attributable to: BR:

Equity holders of the Company RAFIERZFFBA 33,739 25,010
Non-controlling interests IE 78 {5 4 2 (3,078) (1,710)
30,661 23,300
Basic and diluted earnings per share ERE AR #FREF HK1.87 cents  HK1.80 cents
13 Al AL

The notes on pages 73 to 175 are an integral part of ZB73EEHI75EMM T ALEHRAM BRI
these consolidated financial statements B E D o

66 Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Finoncial Position

v/'_F

a BN &

As at 31 December 2015
RZZE—RF+=ZA=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
—E-RF —E-mF —ZZET-NEF
= = +t=ZA=+-—H —A—A
Note HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 TER FATT FAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(g=5)) (L E5)
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and W WEXR
equipment B4 15 4,784 4,781 1,537
Intangible assets mEEE 16 12,552 13,481
Available-for-sale financial AR E SR
assets BE 17 32,285 1,344 —
Deferred income tax assets  IEIEPTIEFEE 24 — — 57
49,621 19,606 1,594
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 18 77,111 135,261 131,426
Trade and other P& ER 3R K
receivables b & R 19 203,095 110,135 156,325
Tax recoverable AJ Y [ F7 18 151 2,007 —
Restricted bank deposits ZBRHIRITIF K 20 20,316 22,230 35,038
Fixed deposits with original ~ EZ|HIH BB
maturity date more than =& Az E
three months 1EEN 20 17,755 21,401 —
Cash and cash equivalents R4 NIREZ
=) 20 127,953 112,436 62,869
446,381 403,690 385,658
Total assets BEHAEH 496,002 423,296 387,252
Equity and liabilities EaRkEE
Equity attributable to equity AATERIFZTEA
holders of the Company EihEs
Share capital N 21 14,837 13,200 —
Reserves 1 122,231 118,512 41,850
Retained earnings BF = 127,413 107,099 100,751
264,481 238,811 142,601
Non-controlling interests FERERS 15,248 18,326 —
Total equity R 279,729 257,137 142,601
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FeMBRR R

As at 31 December 2015
RZZ2—RE+A=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2015 2014 2014
—E-RF —E-mF —ZZET-NEF
+TZA=1+—H pgeisnd= —A—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
b e FET FAET FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&&E5) (L E5)
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities EFRBEE
Note payable B EE 30(c)(ii) 10,000 — —
Loan from a shareholder BRE R 30(c)() — 27,769 —
Deferred income tax RIEFBHAsE
liabilities 24 644 721 —
10,644 28,490 —
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERT R R K oA
FE 3R 22 164,429 90,528 159,411
Note payable ERER® 30(c)(ii) 10,000 — —
Bank borrowings RITIER 23 31,200 47,141 75,531
Current income tax EHMGHAE
liabilities = - 9,709
205,629 137,669 244,651
Total liabilities EERE 216,273 166,159 244,651
Total equity and liabilites H#ZRKEEHEE 496,002 423,296 387,252

The notes on pages 73 to 175 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.

The financial

Cheng Wai Tak
Director

BEE

EFE

statements on pages 65 to 175 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2016
and were signed on its behalf.

R -

Tse Ka Wing
Director
HRE

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Chonges in Equi’ry
GARE2BE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
E-ECAFT-ASt-ALEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRREERAAREES

Non-
Share  Share Other  Merger Revaluation Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves* reserve reserve  reserve earnings Total interests  equity

FER
BA BOEE HthRE aftff ERRRE EXRE 2FhsE A% it BnAR
WZCH HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

UGl TEn TEn TR TEx Téx TEx Tz TEx TRz TE=n

Balance at 1 January 2015 —E-1§¥-HF-H
&8
As previously reported BUAG2H 13,200 77,800 38,000 - - (177) 113,976 242,799 — 242,799
Adjusted for common control “EEHNAHZ
combination EE 211 - - - 3,900 () (1008 (6877) (3,988 18326 14,338
As restated FER] 13,200 77,800 38,000 3,900 (] (1,185) 107,099 238,811 18,326 257,137
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Profit for the year FEAE = = = = = - 27732 27732 (2,290) 25,442
Other comprehensive income ~ E 2 #
Change in value of available-for A HESBEEZ
sale financial assets EBEZY = = = = 7,094 - - 70% (53) 7,041
Currency translation differences  JMNEHTHZHE = = = = = (1,087) - (1,087) (735)  (1,822)
Total other comprehensive H2AalseE
income - = = = 7094 (1,087) - 6007 (788) 5,219

Total comprehensive income 2 E W HAE = = =

7,094 (1,087) 27,732 33,739 (3,078) 30,661

Transactions with owners in their EHBA (565

capacity as owners EBARE
Issue of new shares as BAFRIEALR

consideration for common BEHlafoRE

control combination 211 1,637 387,938 - (419,575) = = — (30,000 — (30,000
Contribution from shareholder ~ ERZHAHTRRZ

under common control iE

combination 2141 - - 29,349 - - - — 29,349 - 29,349
Dividend relating to 2014 “E-MERS = = = = = - (7,418)  (7,418) - (7418
Total transaction with owners in EEBA (565

their capacity as owners BENRBHE 1,637 387,938 29,349 (419,575) - - (7418 (8,069) - (8,089)
Balance at 31 December 2015 Z—Z-H%

tZA=t+-R&t% 14,837 465738 67,349 (415,675) 7,091 (2,272) 127413 264481 15248 279,729
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERagEHX

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-AF+_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KARRAEEREARAER

Non-
Share  Share Other  Merger Revaluation Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves*  reserve reserve  reserve earnings Total interests  equity
FEER
BRE BRHEE Ht@EE S0EE EMEE EIHRE Brks @ Bn BREE
Note  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
H# TEL FTET TET TEx TErL  TET TAT THEx  TET TEx
Balance at 1 January 2014  —B-MNE-A-A&H
As previously reported B2 - - 38,000 - - (60) 100,785 138,735 — 138,735
Adjusted for common LEEHE 2 AE
control combination PAR - - - 3,900 - - (34) 3,866 - 3,866
As restated gE = — 38,000 3,900 = (60) 100,751 142,601 — 142,601
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year (as restated) /& F# (1 Z31) - - - - - - 26148 26148 (975) 25173
Other comprehensive income ~ H 4t 2 i %
Change in value of available-for- A& S REE 2
sale financial assets EEZH(LET)
(as restated) - - - - 3 - - 3 @) ()
Currency translation differences SMEFEZ R (FE5)
(as restated) - - - - - (1,135) - (1,135) (733  (1,868)
Total other comprehensive A2 EMELE
income (as restated) (mE3) - - - - 9 (1,135) - (1139) (735)  (1,879)
Total comprehensive income 2 W &= £ (L E )
(as restated) - - - - @B (1135 26148 25010  (1710) 23300
Transactions with owners in ~ EHEEA(EH B
their capacity as owners BENRS
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo —RRB AR
(as restated) (g 535) - - - - - - - - 2003 20,036
Issue of new shares by way of EBEEXTHK
placing 3,300 95,700 - - - - — 99,000 — 99,000
Share issue expenses RHBTRZ - (8,000 - - - - - (8,000) - (8,000)
Capitalisation issue BALET 9,900  (9,900) = - - - - - - -
Dividend relating to 2013 “2-cERE - - - - - — (19,800) (19,800) — (19,800
Total transaction with owners in EBEEA(BREHEEA)
their capacity as owners RHBE(RE)
(as restated) 13,200 77,800 - - - — (19,8000 71,200 20,036 91,236
Balance at 31 December 2014 —Z-M&+=-A=1+-A
(as restated) G (BE7) 13200 77800 38,000 3900 () (1185 107099 238811 18326 257137
* Other reserves include: (1) the difference between the share capital * HihFHERE  (WREBEARA EHM#ETHEMR A2

issued by the Company for acquisition of the subsidiaries pursuant
to a reorganisation for the listing of the Company and the
aggregate capital of the subsidiaries being acquired at the time of
the Reorganisation; and (2) the amount of shareholder’s loan
waived by the vendor upon completion of the common control
combination.

The notes on pages 73 to 175 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated S’ra’remen’r of Cash Flows
n‘/T\ e IE/ ﬁ J)IL % %‘:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HUL&EE
2014
—ma
Note HK$'000
ikz3 FAT
(Restated)
(&£ &E5)
Cash flows from operating activites K& EBHNRERE
Cash generated from operations KEEEXNES 26 73,960 9,890
Income tax paid ERAEH (4,562) (18,843)
Interest paid e AE (1,423) (2,550)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mEEEBESLE(FA)
operating activities IR e 67,975 (11,503)
Cash flows from investing activities &ﬁ?ﬁi)]ﬂ’]ﬁﬁmus
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash Y& — M B 2
acquired MBREEFR % 29 = 867
Investment in an associate HE—EBE AT = (11,550)
Purchases of property, plant and BEVE BEMEKE
equipment 15 (2,095) (3,478)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEwE V%& YY)
plant and equipment FT 15 301 26 — 62
Additions of intangible assets mﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ 16 = (3,122)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial & alft L& 4 Bl E E
assets 17 (23,954) —
Decrease/(increase) in fixed deposits REIHAHBBE =/~
with original maturity date more than & 877 #E 4 (3 A1)
three months 2,790 (9,852)
Interest received =R & PN 1,101 690
Net cash used in investing activities HEEZHMAFES (22,158) (26,383)
Cash flows from financing activites ®EZHNEESHKE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE KPS KIA 65,517 277,774
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (81,458) (306,164)
Payment of cash as part of the ERHEES & 0D
consideration for common control REZBS TR
combination (10,000)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits 8 4 X BR #1 48 1717 X 1,914 12,808
Proceeds from issue of shares by way & @ &3 17D TS
of placing RIE = 99,000
Professional service fees in respect of E#HR MDA E 2
preparation for share placing EERBE - (3,426)
Advances from a shareholder — BB AR 1,580 27,769
Dividends paid B E (7,418) (19,800)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (AR, EE
financing activities FIRE (29,865) 87,961
BEXEBRZL2AE 2015 F1&)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GZERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE-_Z-—AF+-A=+—RHLEFE

2015 2014

TE AT [kiks

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

gz TER FHTT

(Restated)

(&E5)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBESEEWEM

equivalents b= 15,952 50,075
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#3R & RIS EEY

of year 112,436 62,869
Exchange losses on cash and cash RekReEBMER

equivalents & 18 (435) (508)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ERBERBLZEY

year 127,953 112,436

The notes on pages 73 to 175 are an integral part of SFE73EZE F175EMM T ANSEAMBKHRERD
these consolidated financial statements. HRER S o
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonoiol Statements

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 June
2013, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (as Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Winful Enterprises
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”). The address of its registered
office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 7 February 2014 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the trading of display panels,
optics products and related electronic components.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) and capitalisation of 989,990,000
shares (the “Capitalisation Issue”) in preparation for
the Listing, the Company became the holding
company of the subsidiaries then comprising the
Group on 31 December 2013, the details of which
were set out in the prospectus issued by the
Company dated 24 January 2014 (the
“Prospectus”).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.
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H 5Tl 3 25 52 12 7 Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1 -1108, Cayman lIslands ° ZNA AL 7
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEBTHEME
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the REBERAVERRMEANETESS
preparation of these consolidated financial BREFNWT - BRAZAZHEIN - BLFEBEE
statements are set out below. These policies have TFBFEERER -

been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 RBEE

The consolidated financial statements of the ARGV ERRERBEE
Company have been prepared in accordance 2R AE(FEESHMAE]) B
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial B ERNEAVBREENTE
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the BUBmMELEANDRE - RE W%
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public BREBVBELRNAZER - U
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated AARBEAENAIHEESREE
financial statements have been prepared under BRAN o

the historical cost convention, except for
available-for-sale financial assets which have
been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in BRGEEBYHREEL I
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of WEFTEFERE THRESER -
certain critical accounting estimates. It also ENGEERECRAAEENS
requires management to exercise its TR EBREPITEEAE - RS
judgement in the process of applying the ERHEBASEEMENERE - ok
Group’s accounting policies. The areas BREGHEWMEREHERBRANMG
involving a higher degree of judgement or FHREE - M AP R -

complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Common control combination

On 22 January 2015, Rightone Resources
Limited (“Rightone”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) to
acquire the entire equity interest in Perfect
Shiny Technology Limited (“Perfect Shiny”) (the
“Acquisition”) from Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (‘Mr.
Cheng”), a director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the consideration of the Acquisition
was HK$323,000,000, of which HK$20,000,000
was satisfied by the issuing and delivering of a
promissory note in favour of Mr. Cheng in the
same amount; HK$10,000,000 was settled by
cash to Mr. Cheng upon completion of the
Acquisition; and the rest was satisfied by the
allotment and issue by the Company of
163,687,151 new shares (the “Consideration
Shares”) to the nominee of Mr. Cheng. Pursuant
to the Agreement, Mr. Cheng agreed to
irrevocably warrant and guarantee to Rightone
that the sum of the profit attributable to equity
holders of Perfect Shiny and its subsidiaries
(“Perfect Shiny Group”) for the two financial
years ending 31 December 2016 shall be not
less than HK$34,000,000 (“Profit Guarantee”).
Mr. Cheng agrees to pay to the Group the
amount that corresponds to the amount of any
shortfall from HK$34,000,000 multiplied by
9.513 (being the implied multiple derived from
the valuation of Perfect Shiny Group at
HK$323,442,000 as at 31 December 2014
performed by an independent valuer divided by
the guaranteed profit in the amount of
HK$34,000,000 under the Profit Guarantes). The
liability may be settled in cash, or, if agreed by
the Group and Mr. Cheng, by the buy-back by
the Company of the Consideration Shares at
their original issue price. However, the maximum
liability of Mr. Cheng in respect of the non-
fulfilment of the profit guarantee shall not
exceed HK$323,000,000. No amount has been
recognised with respect to the Profit Guarantee
as at 31 December 2015. Furthermore, a
shareholder’s loan of approximately
HK$29,349,000 payable by Perfect Shiny to Mr.
Cheng was waived upon completion of the
Acquisition. Details of the Acquisition are set out
in the Company’s circular to its shareholders
dated 6 March 2015. The Acquisition was
approved by an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders of the Company by way of poll
in an extraordinary general meeting held on 17
April 2015. The Acquisition was completed and
the Consideration Shares were issued on 30
April 2015, at which time the closing price of
shares of the Company was HK$2.38 per
share.

2
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Rightone Resources Limited
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & B 5

=
)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Common control combination

(Continued)

In the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015, it
was determined that the Group and
Perfect Shiny Group were ultimately
controlled by Mr. Cheng before and after
the Acquisition, and that control is not
transitory. The Group and Perfect Shiny
Group were regarded as continuing
entities as at the date of business
combination and hence the Acquisition
was accounted for as a combination of
entities under common control by
applying the principles of merger
accounting in accordance with the
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
accounting for common control
combinations” (“AG 5”) issued by the
HKICPA as if the Acquisition had
occurred on the date when the
combining entities first came under the
control of the substantial shareholder.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities
acquired in the common control
combinations are stated at their carrying
amounts as if they had been held or
incurred by the Group from the later of
the date on which the combining entities
first came under the control of the
substantial shareholder or the relevant
transactions giving rise to the assets or
liabilities arose.

In accordance with AG 5, the
comparative amounts of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company
have been restated to include the
financial statement items of Perfect Shiny
Group. The effect of the common control
combination of Perfect Shiny Group on
the comparative consolidated financial
statements are summarised as follows:
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Y e Parax —
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TESTHTHREBMEGE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
21 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wRBEE(E)
2.1.1 Common control combination 21.1 REAZH & G (4F)
(Continued)
(a)  Effect on the consolidated @ HR-ZF—WFEFZHA=
statement of financial position as at 1+ —HAE YR EA
31 December 2014 T
As Perfect
previously Shiny Consolidation As
reported Group adjustment restated
15 DA BT
2% EHHEHE REHAE LE5|
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAET FH&IT &I FH& T
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment %1 % « i 5 k& & 3,778 1,003 4,781
Intangible assets mREE 3,122 10,359 13,481
Available-for-sale financial assets A F & & gh & & - 1,344 1,344
6,900 12,706 19,606
Current assets REBEE
Inventories LS 133,657 1,604 135,261
Trade and other receivables JE W BR 3R K
H A 18 UL X 108,921 1,214 110,135
Tax recoverable A Uy Bl 718 2,227 — 2,227
Restricted bank deposits ZRHRITFR 22,230 — 22,230
Fixed deposits with original JREIEA A #E38 =& A
maturity date more than three 2 EBITFE R
months — 21,401 21,401
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEBD 103,314 9,122 112,436
370,349 33,341 403,690
Total assets EEHBE 377,249 46,047 423,296
Equity and liabilities EnkEE
Equity attributable to equity KATREREFEA
holders of the Company FELER
Share capital % 2 13,200 3,900 (3,900) 13,200
Reserves =] 115,623 (1,011) 3,900 118,512
Retained earnings/(accumulated 277 W 28,/
losses) (REHEER) 113,976 (6,877) 107,099
242,799 (3,988) 238,811
Non-controlling interests FERES - 18,326 18,326
Total equity BT L 242,799 14,338 257,137
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities knBEME
Loan from a shareholder P& R B R — 27,769 27,769
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFEH AR 115 606 721
115 28,375 28,490
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables FERBER K
H At & A 3R 87,194 3,334 90,528
Bank borrowings |ITHERK 47,141 — 47,141
134,335 3,334 137,669
Total liabilities BEHAE 134,450 31,709 166,159
Total equity and liabilities RERAEAE 377,249 46,047 423,296
BEXEBRZL2AE 2015 F1&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TESTHHREMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
21 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wRBEE(E)
2.1.1 Common control combination 21.1 REAZH & G (4F)
(Continued)
(b)  Effect on the consolidated b HR-F—pF—H—H
statement of financial position as at HEHBEMR LKA ZE

1 January 2014

As Perfect

previously Shiny Consolidation As
reported Group adjustment restated
15 LA AT
2% EHEE AR “E7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET T 7T FE T
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - B & & 1,537 — 1,537
Deferred income tax assets BIEFEHREE 57 — 57
1,604 - -7
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 131,426 — 131,426
Trade and other receivables JE W BR 3R R
Ho A e U R 152,459 3,866 156,325
Restricted bank deposits SR HIRITIF 35,038 - 35,038
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEBY 62,869 - 62,869
381,792 3,866 385,658
Total assets EERR 383,386 3,866 387,252
Equity and liabilities EERAE
Equity attributable to equity AAREHEFEA
holders of the Company iR
Share capital [N — 3,900 (3,900) —
Reserves & 37,950 — 3,900 41,850
Retained earnings/(accumulated 277 W 28,/
losses) (R E18) 100,785 (34) 100,751
Total equity % 138,735 3,866 142,601
Liabilities af&E
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade and other payables FER R &
Ho A AT 3R 159,411 — 159,411
Bank borrowings RITER 75,531 - 75,531
Current income tax liabilities EHMGEHERE 9,709 — 9,709
244,651 — 244,651
Total liabilities EEHAE 244,651 — 244,651
Total equity and liabilities EnRBEAE 383,386 3,866 387,252
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Common control combination

GeMBRRME

2 FEEFBERBMEGE)

21 HWEBEXE(HE)

2.1.1 BEZ# & GF (&)

(Continued)
(c)  Effect on the consolidated © HEE—ZF—HF+=—H
statement of comprehensive =F—HIUFEAESEH

income for the year ended 31

December 2014

Yook R

As Perfect
previously Shiny Consolidation As
reported Group adjustment restated
B AR
2H% EHEE e fEl
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FE T FHET T FHET
Revenue A 1,299,154 341 1,299,495
Cost of sales 5 AR (1,207,137) (1,091) (1,208,228)
Gross profit/(loss) EF038) 92,017 (750) 91,267
Other (losses)/gains, net ,H\ﬁﬁ (E518), /W F8 (1,410) 1,172 (238)
Distribution and selling expenses % ## & $ & Bl 3% (14,783) (293) (15,076)
General and administrative *&ﬁlﬁ(ﬁﬁi
expenses (88,775) (217) (83,992)
Research and development HREAFERAX
expenses — (4,900) (4,900)
Operating profit/(loss) “EFE(BR) 42,049 (4,988) 37,061
Finance income IR T N 571 119 690
Finance costs M E A (2,550) — (2,550)
Finance (costs)/income, net M (BR) WM FE (1,979) 119 (1,860)
Share of loss of an associate 715 — At & QN F] 2
518 — (953) (953)
Loss on re-measurement of DIEBRIER X
associate to acquisition date AR ENE
fair value in business A /NCIY g
combination achieved B AR BEME
in stages BB — (2,028) (2,028)
Profit/(loss) before income tax Bk F7 18 B a1 FIHE
(F54) 40,070 (7,850) 32,220
Income tax (expense)/credit % (ER), e (7,079) 32 (7,047)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFE(FHE) 32,991 (7,818) 25173
Other comprehensive income: H i 2 E U :
Iltems that may be reclassified — FE14 A] E # 7 =
subsequently to income WK ZHE
statement
Change in value of available-for- A & & gt & & ~
sale financial assets BEZH - (5) (5)
Currency translation differences 447 & =58 (127 (1,741) (1,868)
Total comprehensive income/ HE2EWE (BIX)
(expense) for the year 4828 32,864 (9,564) 23,300
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFME(FE)
attributable to: BER:
Equity holders of the Company ARAREZFAEA 32,991 (6,843) 26,148
Non-controlling interests FERER — (975) (975)
32,991 (7,818) 25173
Total comprehensive income/ &FE2EWE (FIX)
(expense) for the year BERERN:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company ARAF#EZEHFH A 32,864 (7,854) 25,010
Non-controlling interests JEERES — (1,710) (1,710)
32,864 (9,564) 23,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

@

(®)

Amendments to standards adopted
by the Group

The following amendments to
existing standards are mandatory
for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2015. The
adoption of these amendments to
standards does not have any
significant impact to the results and
financial position of the Group:

Hong Kong Defined Benefit
Accounting Plans
Standard
(“HKAS”) 19
(2011)

Amendment

Annual Annual
Improvement Improvements
Project 2010-2012

cycle

Annual Annual
Improvement Improvements
Project 2011-2013

cycle

New standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted

The following are new standards
and amendments to standards
which have been issued but are not
effective and have not been early
adopted. The Group plans to adopt
these new standards and
amendments to standards when
they become effective:

Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (Continued)

®)

2 FEEFBERBMEGE)

21 HWEBEXE(HE)

212 Bit RERBBR K F (&)

New standards and amendments to (b)  ERERAZ FTER R ER)

Standards not yet adopted
(Continued)

1EET (

.

4 )
A

BUTE#MSH 2%
MEzeastBEEN
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKAS 1 Amendment

BEGEREIR(ETA)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendments

BEGHENFICHERE B G EL
ERETACHES)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Amendments

BEGHEABIRREB G LR
EXAE AN

HKAS 27 Amendment

BB G ER 275 (BT A)

HKFRS 9

BENBREENFR

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Amendments

BAEMBRELNFE109 RE B G
R 285 (ERTA)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Amendments

BEMBREERE105 BAEUB
REERE12RREB G ENE
2857 (15 7T 4%)

HKFRS 11 Amendment

BB RE LR FEHRUERT A)
HKFRS 14
BB WS ERFE1458
HKFRS 15

EEW R E LR FE165E
Annual Improvement Project
FENEERR

Disclosure Initiative

wEET &

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

BB EREHE CAIET A
Agriculture: Bearer Plants
B¥EEMED

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

BB RE 2 EwmE

Financial Instruments

BMsTA

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BEEREABMEREERRZHENEEDSE
g E

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

REBER EAGEARMR

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

WEAEXBERD 2 EFE

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

EERTERP

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

BERPAKBA

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 cycle

R CFE_T-NFBEHFELRE

1 January 2016
—T—~F—HA—H
1 January 2016
—T—-~"F—HA—H
1 January 2016
—T-R"F—-HA—H
1 January 2016
—T—~"F—HA—H
1 January 2018

—E-N\¥—A—H
To be determined

=

FE
1 January 2016

—T—R"F—HA—H

1 January 2016

—T—R"F—HA—H
1 January 2016
—T-R"F—-H—H
1 January 2018
—T—N\F—HA—H
1 January 2016
—ZT-R"F—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

®)

©

New standards and amendments to
Standards not yet adopted
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied
these new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not
yet effective in the preparation of
the consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the
new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the financial
statements of the Group.

New Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622)

The requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation
during the financial year, as a
result, there are changes to
presentation and disclosures of
certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

@

Business combinations

A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Except for the Reorganisation and
business combinations under
common control, the Group applies
the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are
measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is
achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the
acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in consolidated
income statement or as a change
to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within
equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@)

®)

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on
transactions between group
companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Merger accounting for common
control combination

The consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining
entities or businesses in which the
common control combination
occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the
controlling party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(®)

Merger accounting for common
control combination (Continued)

The net assets of the combining
entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book
values from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for
goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent
of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement
includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where
there is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the
consolidated financial statements
are presented as if the entities or
businesses had been combined at
the previous balance sheet date or

when they first came under
common control, whichever is
shorter.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESTHEMEE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 22 MWEAT (&)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(®)

Merger accounting for common
control combination (Continued)

A uniform set of accounting
policies is adopted by those
entities. AIll intra-group
transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions
between combining entities or
businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Transaction costs, including
professional fees, registration fees,
costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses
incurred in combining operations of
the previously separate businesses,
etc., incurred in relation to the
common control combination that
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is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting is recognised as
an expense in the period in which
it is incurred.
2.2.2 Separate financial statements 222 BUHEHE
RHE AR 2 R BB
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Investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
(Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment
in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the
investor's share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to consolidated income
statement.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to “share of
loss of an associate” in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the
Group’s financial statements only to the extent
of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the directors,
who make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements
of each of Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$),
which is the Company’s functional and
the Group’s presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement within
“other losses, net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(®)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of debt
investment denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale
are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the investment and
other changes in the carrying amount of
the investment. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in consolidated income
statement, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equity
investment classified as available-for-sale,
are included in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold Over the shorter of the
improvements term of the leases or
5 years
Moulds and 2-3 years
machinery
Furniture and office 3-5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying

amount

and are recognised in the

consolidated income statement within “other
losses, net”.

Intangible assets

@

Gooadwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the
identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units
to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets (Continued)
(b)  Patents

Separately acquired patents are shown
at historical cost. Patents acquired in a
business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Patents
have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost
of patents over their estimated useful
lives of 7 years.

(c)  Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful
life are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life or intangible assets not ready to use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation or depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: loans and
receivable and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

@)

®)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “restricted bank
deposits”, “fixed deposits with
original maturity date more than
three months”, and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the
investment matures or
management intends to dispose of
it within 12 months of the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-
for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the
income statement as “gains and losses
from investment securities”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

210 Offsetting financial instruments

211

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@)

(®)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at the end of each

reporting period whether there s
objective evidence that a financial asset

or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
For debt investment, if any such

evidence exists the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in
consolidated income statement — s
removed from equity and recognised in
consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in consolidated income
statement, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

212

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale
(Continued)

For equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in
consolidated income statement — s
removed from equity and recognised in
consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

213

214

215

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & B 5

=
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Trade and other payables

217

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

218

2.19

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expenses for the period comprise
current and deferred income tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

219 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the
countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using
the liability method, on temporary
differences, arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement
of financial position date and are
expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

219 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are
provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only
when there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

219 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(@)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

@

Pension obligations

The Group pays contributions to defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong. The
schemes are generally funded through
payments to separate trustee-
administered funds, determined by
periodic calculations.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and
prior periods.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

@)

®)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to
administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

The Group also contributes on a monthly
basis to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant
municipal and provincial governments in
the People’'s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and Taiwan. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired
employees for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. The
assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in
independently administered funds
managed by the PRC government and
Taiwan. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments
wholly due within 12 months after the
balance sheet date are recognised as a
liability where the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the statement of financial position
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to anyone
item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. A contingent

asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of

economic benefits will arise, the asset and the
related income are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements of the period
in which the change occurs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described
below.

@  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to
the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method.

Lease (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor), are
charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the respective
shareholders or directors of the group
companies, where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by the senior management of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) and New Taiwan
dollars (“TWD”).

Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency.
Management periodically reviews
assets and liabilities held in
currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an
acceptable level. The Group does
not enter into any arrangement to
hedge its foreign exchange rate
risk.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign
currency rates. In the opinion of the
directors, the Hong Kong dollars
are reasonably stable against the
USD under the Linked Exchange
Rate System, and accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis with respect to
the USD against Hong Kong dollar
is performed.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Market risk (Continued)

(0

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, if Hong
Kong dollar had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the
year would have been HK$703,000
(2014: HK$1,818,000) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on
translation of RMB-denominated
bank balances.

If TWD had weakened/strengthen
by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have
been HK$235,000 (2014:
HK$235,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange
gain/losses on translation of RMB-
denominated bank balances.

[f TWD had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the
USD with all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the
year would have been HK$381,000
(2014: HK$358,000) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on
translation of USD-denominated
bank balances and debt
investment classified as available-
for-sale investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Market risk (Continued)

()

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from bank deposits, bank balances
and bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2015 and
2014, bank borrowings of the
Group are fixed interest rate
borrowings and expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk.

Bank deposits and bank balances
held at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

Other than bank deposits, bank
balances and bank borrowings, the
Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities.
The Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk associated with the effects
of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of the market interest rates
on its cash flows is not deemed to
be substantial in the view of
management based on the nature
of the assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & B 5
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, if the
interest rates had been 50 basis-
points higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
HK$563,000 (2014: HK$454,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest income on
bank deposits and bank balances,
and higher/lower interest expense
on bank borrowings.

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the
fair values of equity securities
decreased as a result of changes
in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from available-for-
sale equity investment (Note 17) as
at 31 December 2015.

At 31 December 2015, if the fair
values of the equity investment
classified as available-for-sale
financial assets had been 10%
higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the
Group’s equity would have been
HK$3,110,000 higher/lower (2014:
Nil), respectively.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from debt investment
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, trade and other receivables,
restricted bank deposits, fixed deposits
with original maturity date more than
three months and bank balances. The
carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. The credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with
reference to the financial position of the
debtors, past experience and other
factors.

The Group has policies in place to
ensure that the sales of products are
made to customers with appropriate
credit histories and the Group performs
regular credit evaluations of its major
customers.

The majority of the Group’s trade
receivables is due for maturity within 60
days and largely comprises amounts
receivable from business customers.
Management does not expect any
significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.

About 88% (2014: 76%) of total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2015
were due from the Group’s largest five
customers. No significant collectability
issues have been identified in the past.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

©

Credit risk (Continued)

Restricted bank deposits, fixed deposits
with original maturity date more than
three months and bank balances are
deposited in reputable banks.
Management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these banks.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability
to settle the payables of the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the date of the statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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GeMBRRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

©

Liquidity risk (Continued)

MRk ERE)

31 RMBERABRRERGAE)

) HEBEZEEE)

Between
Less than 1to

1 year 5 years Total
PRA—F —ZHF Mt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FE T FE T FE T

At 31 December 2015 RZT—H1F

+=-A=+—8H

Bank borrowings RITEE 31,235 = 31,235
Trade payable FERTBR X 143,272 — 143,272
Other payables H fth jE& - 3K 10,426 — 10,426
Note payables EAEE 10,000 10,000 20,000
194,933 10,000 204,933

At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF

(Restated) +=—A=+—H
(&E7))

Bank borrowings RITEE 47,189 — 47,189
Trade payable FETBR X 72,526 — 72,526
Other payables Hoth j& - 3K 11,200 — 11,200
Loan from a shareholder f& | E & - 27,769 27,769
130,915 27769 158,684
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FEMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HKERERE)
(Continued)
3.2 Capital management 3.2 EXER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital AEBEERESWERERRERSE
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue BRI E R AR EE BN
as a going concern in order to provide returns AARESERE R - BB EM
for shareholders and benefits for other M HEENF D WESHED
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal BEREEABEE S KA -
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the AEERBEEEELXERER -
debt-to-asset ratio. The ratio is calculated as U EREEERERUNEERE
total debt divided by total assets. Total debt is H o BELELFTEEERE -
calculated as interest-bearing borrowings.
2015 2014
= s —T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FABT
(Restated)
(& &E5)
Total debt BfERAR 31,200 47,141
Total assets BEMEE 496,002 423,296
Debt-to-asset ratio BEEELX 6.3% 11.1%

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares and sell
assets to reduce debt.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are
analysed by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial assets, including cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank deposits,
fixed deposits with original maturity date
more than three months, and trade and
other receivables; and the Group’s
financial liabilities, including trade and
other payables, note payable, bank
borrowings, loan from a shareholder,
approximate their fair values due to their
short maturities.

The nominal values less any estimated
credit adjustments for financial assets
and liabilities with a maturity of less than
one year are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to
the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBKRERME
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMKEREREE)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREBEME)
The following table presents the carrying value TRIB=ERNNET MR EB
of financial instruments measured at fair value BARBEFEZEMTAKR@E -

at the date of the statement of financial
position across the three levels.

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2015
R=TB-—HF+=A=+—H
ZRAREBEEFE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2/E E3E 5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT FTHERT THERT THEX

Recurring fair value REMEAAEETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial AR ESmEE:
assets:
— Unlisted debt investment — JELFHEHKKRE 1,184 - — 1,184
— Unlisted equity investment — 3F FMIERE - - 31,101 31,101

1,184 - 31,101 32,285
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBRERERGE
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AAEEMF(E)
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2014
RZE-—ME+-_A=+—H
AR EETE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE F2E E3E mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(mE7)) (BEY) KBEY) (KBEF)
Recurring fair value REMDAEETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial AHEESmEE:
assets:
— Unlisted debt investment — FEMEBERE 1,344 - - 1,344

There were no transfers between levels 1 and
2 during the year (2014: Nil).

(@)  Financial instruments in level 1 (a)

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. The instrument is
included in level 1. Instrument included in
level 1 comprises the open-ended
unlisted fund which mainly invested in
debt investment with quoted bid price in
an active market and classified as
available-for-sale financial assets.
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FEMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXEKRERE)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AQAAREEME (F)

124

(b)  Financial instruments in level 3

The following table presents the changes
in level 3 instruments for the year ended

(b) FIEHTHEE

TREHBE_ZT—OLF+=
A=t—BLFEFIEIAZ

31 December 2015: 29

Unlisted equity
investment
FLETRERE
2015
—E—HF
HK$°000
FERT
At 1 January n—H—H —
Additions 2 23,954

Change in value recognised in other REMEAWERRZ
comprehensive income BEZY 7,147
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 31,101

Change in unrealised gains for the year

included in other comprehensive income

at the end of the year

M FRETA R A2 H R 3
2 RBR 2 B
7,147

The Group’s unlisted available-for-sale
equity investment consists of preferred
shares issued by a private entity. The fair
value of the preferred shares held is
derived by using option-pricing methods
to allocate the equity value of the entity,
which is implied from the issue prices of
recent transactions and justified by
comparable company valuation multiples
approach.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)

Below is a summary of significant
unobservable inputs to the valuation of
the unlisted available-for-sale equity
investment, together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis:

Significant
Valuation technique unobservable
and key inputs input

ERFAEE
HERMTREEDAHE WABE

GeMBRRME

BHERERE

DREEME (A

(b) FIEHETHEEHE

T X5 E3E L A4 R
BREMEZERTAERGA
BE - ERTEEHREIN:

Sensitivity of fair value to
Value the input

BE BABRBZARBEESRE

Market comparable companies Volatility
and equity value allocation with
option-pricing method that are
estimated based on recent
transaction prices, volatility, risk-
free interest rate, time-to-
maturity, and dividend vyield

MHALRAAREEEESBE KB
R EBECMAER AL
R 5B KB - EERF
= BB PR & IR S B )

38.5% 10% increase/decrease in the
volatility would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by approximately
HK$282,000/HK$277,000.

38.5% R IRIE AN, A10% - S
NAREBERD, G
282,000/ 7T,/ 277,000/
7T|: °
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under

circumstances.

41 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The

accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are addressed below.

(a)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated selling
expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products
of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
consumer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimations by each date of the
statement of financial position to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

41

Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)

(b)

()

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
the jurisdiction in which the Group
operates. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such
determination is made.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for
impairment of trade receivables based on
an estimate of the recoverability of these
receivables. Provisions are applied to
trade receivables, where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment of trade
receivables requires the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying
amount of receivables and the provision
for impairment losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.
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B 7% 3R & B 5

)

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

41

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

@)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether
goodwill has suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.7(a). The recoverable
amounts of CGU have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of
estimates.

Management judgement is required in the
area of asset impairment particularly in
assessing the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of
operations. If there is a significant
change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections,
such difference will impact the carrying
value of the relevant asset and amount
of impairment charge for the year in
which such estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continueqd)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

©

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the end of each
reporting period.

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by wusing valuation
techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period.
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=
)

5

B 7% 3R & B 5

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been
identified as the directors of the Company. The
directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources
and have determined the operating segments based
on these reports.

Due to the fact that the Group continued to diversify
its product ranges, the directors no longer review
and assess the performance of each individual
product but manage the business in aggregate on
entity level. During the year ended 31 December
2015, the management changed the presentation of
segment information and consolidated the
unprocessed thin film transistor liquid crystal display
(“TFT-LCD”) panels and other unprocessed products,
processed TFT-LCD panels, driver integrated circuits
and polarisers into one operating single segment of
display products, namely, the Display Products
Segment. In addition, the Group’s new business of
optics-related products is considered as a new
operating segment, namely, the Optics Products
Segment. The management considered that the
change provides a more appropriate presentation of
the Group’s existing operating structure.
Comparative information has been restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

The directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and results of each segment and do not assess the
performance based on segment assets and
liabilities.
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7 EHER

BEREEERRERMERAARNES - &
EEHAKENABREAFERERD
AR UREBEZEHREETCKEDH -

HMRAEETHEBEAEREE EF1H
BELRFIHERENERZERR  RANE
REAARBETEER NEBEE-ZZT—AF
TZA=Zt+—HLEFE EREXRESE
BRZZ2%  THBAENMTERSRER
fm B8 7B~ ([TFT-LCDJ) M 4R B H b R 48 11
IE® COIITFT-LCOER - SREh8 &
REELRECRGEAE AERERE—
EESE - BVBERE MDD I o o 0 KE
EFFARZAEEBEEEREBERATK
BoE BABERSH EERERBZ
BHEAACAEERECELEEZEY -
HBREREEENARARFE 2 2HRHF
7ﬁo

EEEARNE N HHRAREEN BTG
REDBHRE  MIEERDBLEERE
BaHELRR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)  The segment information provided to the
directors for the reportable segments for the

5

GeMBRRME

7w E K (HF)

@ HTRRUFEFRE-T-HFR
—E-mEt=ASt—AILEEA

year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as WE D E R
follows:
Display Products Optics Products Total
BrREM kBEM Mt
2015 2014
—T - —E—mF Bl — T NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FExT FHT FHT T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (EE3)) (&%)
Segment revenue (all from R ONEE:IPY
external customers) BINBEE) 1,272,975 1,299,154 1,199 341 1,274,174 1,299,495
Segment results DEHEE 95,605 92,017 (8,030) (8,631) 87,575 83,386
Unallocated operating costs R B4 & B (55,226) (49,306)
Finance costs, net s ERFHR (322) (1,860)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 5 A1 A B 32,027 32,220
Other segment information: Hithn HER:
Share of loss of an associate* 9 15— [E B & 2 7]
ZEE - - - (953) = (953)
Loss on re-measurement of DREBRER X
associate to acquisition date EilES
fair value in business ERERAR
combination achieved in WEBHLAE
stages* BEFELEZE
=M = - - (2,028) - (2,028)

Share of loss of an associate and loss on re-
measurement of associate to acquisition date fair
value in business combination achieved in stages
are included in the segment results for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

* BE-Z-—NEF-_A=+—HILFE
ZOMERBEIE-—RBERTZ
BEREDEBERZEBAHPEN
AEBEARNKERRAALBEMN
EEZER-
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FEMBRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 % #8% ¥ (&)

(b)  The Group’s revenue from its major products (b) (EZT-AFR-F—WF+=A
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and =t+—HIEFE - $%IX§EIE
2014 are as follows: EmZWAENNT

2015 2014

ST AT ekaif:s

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FiE T

(Restated)

(s 5)

TFT-LCD panels and modules TFT-LCDME R & 18 78 1,076,227 1,001,960
Driver integrated circuits TaEheS AN E 156,180 249,616
Polarisers Im etk 31,436 29,377
Others H A 10,331 18,542
1,274,174 1,299,495

() Segment revenue by customers’ geographical ) REFHEBNEBEIINIBURA
location
During the year ended 31 December 2015 ZEE-hFER_T—MF+=A
and 2014, most of the Group revenues were =t+—HIFE - $§EK7(E‘I3 oA
derived in Hong Kong, where the Group’s HREES  AEBITRBEEREP
products were delivered by the Group to its RIFEM °
customers.

2015 2014

TE-RF [kitks

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FTT

(Restated)

(e E5)

Hong Kong BB 1,244104 1,266,030
The PRC elle 28,893 33,124
Taiwan =9 1,177 341
1,274,174 1,299,495
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GeMBRRME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

(d)  Revenues from major customers who have
individually contributed to 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group are disclosed as

7w E K (HF)

(d) REXEEP (BRHAKELKAI0%

FA )R AREWT

follows:
2015 2014
— s ZERE—pEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FAT
(Restated)
(&5
Customer A (Note) BPEAK ) 180,038 110,635
Customer B ®FB 167,160 204,270
Customer C (Note) BFC(Ha) 163,357 —
Customer D (Note) EFD(#:t) 143,110 10,520
653,665 325,425

Note: Revenues from Customer A, C and D contribute less
than 10% of the total revenue of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

The above four customers are included in the
Display Products Segment.

Bret: REEFPA CRDEMWAGEREEEZE
—E-NUET A=+ -HIEFENER

WA D 710% e

FRMERFEPEABRERD &R

BxxEFR2DA 2015 £
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FEMBRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 49 2B& % (%)

(e)  An analysis of the Group’s non-current segment ) REBEEMNE AEBEZIERDHI
assets (other than available-for-sale financial BEMREINHEESHEE) DT
assets) by location of assets is as follows: wm

Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Total
BB s =] Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAET TAT TAT

As at 31 December 2015: R=-Z—=HF
+=ZA=+-—8:
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 2,277 925 1,582 4,784
Goodwill (5K = = 6,519 6,519
Other intangible assets HthEREE 2,000 1,122 2,911 6,033
4,277 2,047 11,012 17,336
As at 31 December 2014: R=-ZT—NF
(Restated) +=ZA=+—8:
(&&E50)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B MR 2,344 1,434 1,003 4,781
Goodwill (SRS - — 6,791 6,791
Other intangible assets Hih R & E 2,000 1,122 3,568 6,690
4,344 2,556 11,362 18,262
6 REVENUE 6 WA
Revenue represents the sales of display panels, WAEHERTER - LEEMNERE
optics products and related electronic components TR TINRALRABUA -

to external parties.
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GeMBRRME

7 OTHER LOSSES, NET

7 HibBEEFHE

2015 2014

— s ZER—pEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FiE T

(Restated)

(=)

Net exchange loss [ 5 18 F 8 1,893 862
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - BEK

plant and equipment RENEBE = 39

Others E i (144) (663)

1,749 238

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included cost of sales, distribution and
and administrative

selling expenses, general

8 BRMHEEIWEAR

FPAERA  DHEMEERS  —RE
THRAXEMERRERIOHERASTN

expenses and research and development expenses I

are analysed as follows:

Cost of inventories sold
Processing and sub-contracting expenses
Transportation expenses
Provision/(reversal of provision) for obsolete
inventories (Note 18)
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Operating lease rentals in respect of buildings
Professional service fees in respect of
the Listing

HEFEMA

MIRINBER

ERmEH

REFERE
(BB B ) (it 18)

% BED B &

— FFIRE

— JEERT R

& B4& A F 2 (A7 229)

WE - BEREETE

B EEH#E

BFEEHERES

EHOMBEXREER

2015

—E-HF

HK$’000

FEx

1,054,067
92,502
8,513

12,669

1,650
179
38,180
2,006
514
7,236

2014
—ZT—F
HK$’000
FET
(Restated)
(geE5)

1,123,009
73,624
5,672

(870)

1,480
73
28,998
1,022
186
8,540

1,084

BxxEFR2DA 2015 £
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FEMBRRME

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERAMEAX
2015 2014
= s T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(eE5)
Short-term employee benefits (Note) EEHEEREMN (A F) 36,336 27,754
Post-employment benefits & B RIKIE A
— defined contribution plans — TEEMH RS 1,844 1,244
Total employee benefit expenses, including  1& & & | B Sz 42 48
directors’ remuneration BIEEEHE 38,180 28,998
Note: Short-term employee benefits represent salary, wages, Wit REBEERIEINEENFE  TERIEA -
bonus paid to employees, staff quarter expense and ETIBEEERUALEIREBENRES -
insurance premium for staff insurance schemes.
(a) Post-employment benefits — defined (a EERKEFN — THEMRTE
contribution plans
No forfeited contributions for the Group is NEE LW R - AT ER
available to reduce the contribution payment in RRFEOHER - Wt SR

the future years. Contributions to schemes ZIGE -
vest immediately.
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REMBRRMET
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEEANEXE)
(Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b) EEESFAL

The five individuals whose remuneration were
the highest in the Group for the year include
three directors (2014: two) whose remuneration
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 32.
The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2014: three) individuals during the year are as
follows:

FAXEBELEESFMHALRRE
“REE(CTEDOFE-mE) HF
P I R 0 Y EES2PT BN AV D AT E A o
FARNBRTMA(CE-—OF: =
BINEZMEWT

2015 2014

o Sies | T PU4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FiE T

Basic salaries, staff quarter expenses, E®EAIE  BEIF<
other allowances and benefits in kind ~ FIsk « E %88 &

EWEN 2,586 3,754

Discretionary bonus (RN 302 583
Contribution to pension scheme R AR ET &I 50 36 40
2,924 4,377

The number of highest paid non-director
individuals whose remunerations for the year
fell within the following bands:

AERHFMN FUTHENFESER
SEHBMALTHAZNT:

Emolument band: & 6 F -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/8 7t &
1,500,000 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%8 7Tt &
2,000,000/ 7T

2014

—E—F

1 1
1 2

BxxEFR2DA 2015 £
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FEMBRRME

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9
(Continued)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, no
remuneration (2014: Nil) were paid by the
Group to a director or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office, and no arrangement under which a
director or the five highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any of the
remuneration.

EBERNFEXZ(F)

(b)

TEBREHAL(E)

BE_Z—AF+_A=+—HLHF
[§ - REBARMESRL RS == 5
ATEREMEFH - (EREIMAR
SEMNERLBBEE . TEEM
EEdhEAESTMATHREXR
EREFWOZHECET —UF:
) o

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BIRERFRE
2015 2014
=i T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&x FAT
(Restated)
(&L &E5)
Finance income B 75U A
Interest income on pledged bank deposits BEMIRITHERF B
WA 727 515
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRF B WA 374 175
1,101 690
Finance costs e A
Interest expense on: AT & I8 EE T A
% :
Bank advances from factored receivables RIE JE U R Y
RITBIK (39) (707)
Bank loan IRITE (229) (251)
Factoring charges REEHR (1,155) (1,592)
(1,423) (2,550)
Finance costs, net BB RFEE (322) (1,860)
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SHARE OF LOSS OF AN ASSOCIATE/
LOSS ON RE-MEASUREMENT OF
ASSOCIATE TO ACQUISITION DATE
FAIR VALUE IN BUSINESS
COMBINATION ACHIEVED IN STAGES

On 22 January 2014, Perfect Shiny acquired
30.91% equity interest in Shinyoptics Corporation
(“Shinyoptics”), a company incorporated in Taiwan
with limited liability, from certain independent third
parties at a consideration of TWD45,200,000
(equivalents to approximately HK$11,550,000).
Shinyoptics was then accounted for as an associate
using equity method of accounting. In September
2014, Perfect Shiny’s shareholding in Shinyoptics
further increased to 50.14% and Shinyoptics became
a 50.14% owned subsidiary of Perfect Shiny Group.
Perfect Shiny’s 30.91% equity interest in
Shinyoptics, which was previously accounted for as
an associate, was then re-measured to its fair value,
resulting in a loss of approximately HK$2,028,000.

11

GeMBRRME

SE—EBE AR DBE DM
BRERZEBSHTENTE
BMEAARWBERRAQIAEER
EEZEE

R-ZE—NE—RB=-+=-H BHEETF
B E=RFWEE I AEROBERAF (A
YHE| —EREEFMKIL2ERAR)
23091% % # - ®# KRB & 3 & &K
45,200,0007T (#8E 71 4911,550,00047T) °
WA B g s A RS QR BIREA
bR e RZZ—NFNA BIHREZHKE
2 AR i — S I AN E=50.14% B i S K E K
BEMEBEEA5014%ER 2B AT -
[B] 151 P 5 1% 37 Y T 2. 30.91% AR A 368 1 DA Bt
BREIAE  HBEFTE2EEQAEE
B 8% 15 15518 492,028,000 7T °
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REMBRERMT

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FiEBEHR
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate EEMNEH RN FAEEBELRIRE
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable BANGETERT R R E16.5% (ZF
profit during the year arising in or derived from Hong — VU5 - 16.5%)FHIR BB - AEEEH
Kong. The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are BB AR BHMTRDEMSH %
subject to PRC corporate income tax at a standard T B25% (ZZT—PU4F : 25%) - RS
rate of 25% (2014: 25%). No PRC corporate income ERER AT IEEEUNEEFREEN
tax has been provided as the Group has available JERTAE - Sl mpth Bl SN
tax losses to offset the assessable profit generated REECE—OF &) Hitiv[m 2 fE
during the vyear (2014: Nil). Taxes on profits REEMNDIBREAEERELERR A
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the EEERNBITHESE -

rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.

2014
—ZT—mF
HK$'000
FAT
(Restated)
(&£ &E75)
Current income tax: EHERK
Current income tax on profits for the year FENBZEH
BIEET 6,658 6,907
Adjustments in respect of prior years HBTFERAE (20) -
Total current income tax EHITS N B 6,638 6,907
Deferred income tax — Origination and BIERGER — EER
reversal of temporary differences (Note 24) BEOTRER
(Kt st24) (53) 140
Income tax expense iE™HE A 6,585 7,047
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GeMBRRME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12 EHREAE)

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the tax rate applicable to the Group as

7R 5% [ 5 B P 1S A A B R A O BT (S A £
150 7R AN = 881 M) 8 80 P ) B R 1 2 A O 38
wEBEEMER - ARBAT:

follows:
2015 2014
== i T —[F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FAT
(Restated)
(&5
Profit before income tax B FT 15 %2 B ) O 32,027 32,220
Tax calculated at Hong Kong tax rate of BB BT E16.5%TE 1
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) MIB(ZZ—MF:
16.5%) 5,284 5,317
Tax effects of: NTHEENHBEE:
— Different taxation rate in other jurisdictions — E{th FE#E & T [F)
& 37 3
— Associate’s results reported net of tax — B & N R Y B TR
¥4 Ik ME = 157
— Income not subject to tax — HAHHAKA (5) 9)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — “NAI{EHIF A% &)
! 740 1,311
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax — f# %A1 EFE R K
losses RIEEE (334) (94)
— Tax losses for which no deferred income — I & IR I FT1S 5L
tax asset was recognised BEMMIARIE 883 362
Adjustment in respect of prior years HBTEFERAE (20) —
Income tax expense Fri8 B &R 6,585 7,047
Effective tax rate BREH X 20.6% 21.9%

BXXEBEHER®XAT 2015 F3§
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FEMBRRME

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares deemed to be in issue during the
year.

In determining the weighted average number of
ordinary shares deemed to be in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
163,687,151 ordinary shares with par value of
HK$0.01 each issued during the year ended 31
December 2015 as part of the consideration of the
common control combination as mentioned in Note
211 above have been regarded as if these shares
were in issue since 1 January 2014.

Furthermore, in determining the weighted average
number of ordinary shares deemed to be in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2014, the
989,990,000 shares with par value of HK$0.01 each
issued upon the Capitalisation Issue have been
regarded as if these shares were in issue since 1
January 2014.

13

FRER

BREAXRBMNINIEARBERFTEARA
MERRE RN EADEITE BB INEF
BHEFE -

REFHE-_Z-—AFFR _T—NF+_-
A=+ HIEFEHRABRETCERRK
MEFHEE BE_Z—-—hE+_A=
+—HIEFE 23 77163,687,151 L & E
BO.ONB L 2 E @A (VEA Lkt sE2115T
MmERESEHRE) DHESE A%
ERHE-_T—NFE—F—BBRB®ET -

N REETEEZE-_Z—NF+-A=+
—HIEFEHGAERIT 2R INET
HER - B2 317 2 #17989,990,000
f& &R A E0.01E T 2 B 5 B R A
ZERMBE_ZT—NFE—A—BREBHET -

2014
—E-ImF
(Restated)
(E5)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the RArIERTEB ARG
Company (HK$'000) B (FET) 27,732 26,148
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 217 %8 % 2 hl#E
in issue (thousands) 8 (FR) 1,483,687 1,450,235
Basic and diluted earnings per share EREARAREERT
(HK cents per share) (BB Nl) 1.87 1.80

For the purpose of determining the diluted earnings
per share amount, no adjustment has been made to
the basic earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 as the Group
had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during these years.
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SUBSIDIARIES

The following
December 2015:

is a

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

list of subsidiaries at 31

14 HEBRQA

GeMBRRME

RZEBE—AF+-_A=1+—HHKHRERT
T

Proportion
of ordinary
shares directly

Proportion
of ordinary shares held by

Proportion
of ordinary

Place of Principal activities Particulars of issued held by the shares held by non-controlling
incorporation and and place of share capital/ Company the Group interests
Name kind of legal entity operation registered capital (%) (%) (%)
ARNFEERE AREREZ FERERB
AEMA L M B R BRTRE/ ZEERLLA EERLA B2EERLA
A8 EERBER TEXBRBELY EEMRAFE (%) (%) (%)
Rightone BVI, limited liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% -
company at no par value
Rightone ABRABBABRLR REZR 10,0007 £ % 3 E E )
Bt
Shinwa Technology Limited BVI, limited liability Holding of patents 1 ordinary share at no - 100% -
company par value
HERRBERRA EBRLBBERAR HEEA 1R E LR R
Sinosky Resources Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share at no - 100% -
company par value
Sinosky Resources Limited EEETHSERAA BRERR 1RERGELAR
Dexing Investment Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share at no = 100% -
company par value
Dexing Investment Limited EEEIBSERAA BRERR 1REAGELER
Yuan Tai Investment Limited Samoa, limited liability  Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of - 100% -
company USD1 each
BEAREBRRA BETHBAR REZR 100 BREEIZTE
il
Perfect Display Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading of display 38,000,000 ordinary - 100% -
liability company panels and related shares
electronic
components in
Hong Kong
BxBRERARA ERERDA REBHERTERKE 38,000,000 % & i
HHEETF BT
Perfect Sky Technology Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Electronic product 1 ordinary share - 100% -
liability company application
development in
Hong Kong
BRBEBERAF ERBERAA REBENEFERE 1REBK
B
Dexing Technology Development  Hong Kong, limited Not yet commenced 1 ordinary share - 100% -

Limited
BANRERERAA

liability company

EEBRAR

business

AAREB

BXXEBEHER®XAT 2015 F3§
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B 7% 3R & B 5

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

14 BB (&)

Proportion
of ordinary Proportion
shares directly of ordinary

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held by

Place of Principal activities Particulars of issued held by the shares held by non-controlling
incorporation and and place of share capital/ Company the Group interests
Name kind of legal entity operation registered capital (%) (%) (%)
ARNRERERE AREREZ FERERB
AEMRA LM B R ERITRH,/ ZEBRLH EERLA BEBERLA
% EEERESR TEEBREERY BEMBREIFHE (%) (%) (%)
Yuan Mei Xin Technology The PRC, limited Wholesaling, import USD500,000 = 100% -
(Shenzhen) Company Limited liability company and export of
display panels and
related electronic
components and
provision of
technical support
and related
services in the PRC
BEEMBERINBRRF FEAERAF ERE{EERAERRE 500,000% T
ERETHHHH
¥ofOkmA -
IR B BB R
LA AR
Yuan Tian Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited Research and USD100,000 - 100% -
Company Limited liability company development,
provision of
technical support
and related
services in the PRC
ERRHE (RIN) BB AR FEERAF PR E R R ERIT 100,000% T
X ERIBB RS
Yuan Tai Electronics Company Taiwan, limited liability ~ Not yet commenced 500,000 ordinary - 100% -
Limited company business shares of
TWD10 each
BasFhHERAA REBERAT RERER 500,000/ & i 18 %
aloOTHEBR
Perfect Shiny Samoa, limited liability  Investment holding and 500,000 ordinary - 100% -
company design and shares of USD1
development of each
applied optics-
related products in
Hong Kong
Bl & BEELHRAF BEERRERBR 500,000/ FREE
RABERLEE IETZERR
m
Perfect Shiny Technology (HK) Hong Kong, limited Design and 1 ordinary share - 100% -

Limited

EHME(FE)ERAR

liability company

BRERAA

development of
applied optics-
related products in
Hong Kong
EEERARFARER
KEER

Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 MEBATR(E
Proportion Proportion
of ordinary Proportion of ordinary
shares directly of ordinary shares held by
Place of Principal activities Particulars of issued held by the shares held by non-controlling
incorporation and and place of share capital/ Company the Group interests
Name kind of legal entity operation registered capital (%) (%) (%)
ARAERERE FRERFZ FERESSE
AEMRA LM B R BRTRSG/ ZEBRLH EERLA BEBERLA
&8 EEERESR TEEBREERY BEMBREIFHE (%) (%) (%)
Shinyoptics Taiwan, limited liability ~ Design, development, 14,800,000 ordinary - 50.14% 49.86%
company production and sale shares of
of optical engines in TWD10 each
Taiwan
WUKE AEERRAA TERERE  F% - &£ 14,800,000R B REE
ERHELSE makiory
gl
Skyteam Resources Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share at - 100% -
company no par value
Skyteam Resources Limited EBRIHSERAF RERR 1RERMEED
EE R
Material non-controlling interests BEARFEHMERESR
The total non-controlling interests as at 31 RZZE—RF+ZA=+—BHFERE

December 2015 amounted to HK$15,248,000 (2014:
HK$18,326,000), which is attributed to Shinyoptics.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$3,435,000
(2014: HK$1,854,000) are held in the PRC and are
subject to local exchange control regulations. These
local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country,
other than through normal dividends.

75 48 B 1215,248,000/8 L (Z T — M0 F:
18,326,000/%87T) - EBM® L HE -

ERRH

" & KR HI1F 33,435,000 L (— & — M
F 11,854,000/ 70) FHRIEFE - ZEHH
INEBEFIFTIRE o W EINEEHI RHFE
+EHRECGEBLEHREAIBRIN -

BXXEBEHER®XAT 2015 F3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary

with material non-controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised financial

information for Shinyoptics.

14 MEBQT(E)

BREARFERESZIHBRARZHEY

TXARE IR 2 BEAH AR -

Summarised statement of financial position HER A F
2015 2014
— - —T—NOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current: mEp:
Assets BE 26,266 32,280
Liabilities afE (866) (834)
Total current net assets MENE EFEEET 25,400 31,446
Non-current: JEMB
Assets BE 5,677 5,914
Liabilities =L (499) (606)
Total non-current net assets JEMENE EFE LG 5,182 5,308
Net assets BEFE 30,582 36,754

Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report
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GARBRENE
14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 KB AT (&)
Summarised financial information on a subsidiary REEAREREZZHEBEARZHEN
with material non-controlling interests (Continued) BER(E)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income BEDE Y K
2015 2014
— T AT etk
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiE T
Revenue WA 1,425 341
Loss before income tax METIS BRI E 1B (4,680) (1,987)
Income tax credit Frig i 87 32
Other comprehensive income b2 N = (1,580) (1,475)
Total comprehensive income FHEW =B (6,173) (3,430)

Total comprehensive income allocated to non- S FIEERER 2 &2
controlling interests T U 5 48 58 (3,078) (1,710)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests SN TIHEERERZ
& 2 - —

BExssmEAD 201528 147
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REMBBERMET
14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 KB AT (&)
Summarised financial information on a subsidiary REEAREREZZHEBEARZHEN
with material non-controlling interests (Continued) BER(E)
Summarised statement of cash flows HEHLTEX
2015 2014
= s —T—UE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net cash used in operating activities KEEEIAFRS (3,241) (1,217)
Net cash generated from/(used in) wEESELE (FTA)
investing activities FIRE 1,820 (9,832)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent HekReZEWR LD

= (1,421) (11,049)
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year F#13R & KR &%
/at the date of acquisition (Note 29) By, 7 U B B E
(B 7#29) 8,060 19,509
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalent 384 NIR &£ EY
(T = 412) (400)
Cash and cash equivalent at end of year FRESRASEED 6,227 8,060
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GeMBRRME

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 ¥ ¥ - - BENR®EE

Leasehold Moulds Furniture
improve- and and office Motor
ments machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HERF #HAR HER
#1415 WEE MAERE RE Bt
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAET FHET FHE T FE T F#& T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&5 (KEH]) (' =351)) (E=E35)
At 1 January 2014 RZZT—mFE—A—H
Cost BN 1,501 - 830 1,271 3,602
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,246) — (492) (327) (2,065)
Net book amount iR FE 255 — 338 944 1,537
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—NmF
F+TZA=+—HILFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 255 - 338 944 1,537
Currency translation differences SN E R ) (41) ) (12) (62)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 29) Uy ¥ — & it /&8 2 &)
(K1 it29) — 948 3 — 951
Additions & 299 277 692 2,210 3,478
Disposals & (16) - - (85) (101)
Depreciation charge e (105) (183) (278) (456) (1,022)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 431 1,001 748 2,601 4,781
At 31 December 2014 RZT—MF
+=—A=+—8
Cost R AR 1,418 1,037 1,492 3,360 7,307
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (987) (36) (744) (759) (2,526)
Net book amount RMEFE 431 1,001 748 2,601 4,781
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_Z—h%F
+ZA=+—BLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 431 1,001 748 2,601 4,781
Currency translation differences SN E ERE (5) (40) (21) (20) (86)
Additions #n 34 1,323 72 666 2,095
Depreciation charge wEIE (157) (702) (340) (807) (2,006)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 303 1,582 459 2,440 4,784
At 31 December 2015 RZZT—RF
+=—A=+—8
Cost R AR 1,445 2,318 1,526 3,996 9,285
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (1,142) (736) (1,067) (1,556) (4,501)
Net book amount B A 303 1,582 459 2,440 4,784
ExxEaRAFT 201588 149
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FEMBRRME

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 BEEE
Club
Goodwill Patents memberships Total
HE =5 =0 @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (gE75) (E5)
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—WNF—A—H
Cost R AR - - - -
Accumulated amortisation REtE - - - -
Net book amount iR EF A - - - -
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_Z—NF
+ZA=+—HILFE
Opening net book amount FHEEFE - - - -
Currency translation differences INETE E R (271) (142) - (413)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 29) W i& — & M & A 7 (K7 :#29) 7,062 3,896 - 10,958
Additions #n — - 3,122 3,122
Amortisation charge BB R - (186) - (186)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 6,791 3,568 3,122 13,481
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-—WFE+-/A=+—H
Cost DN 6,791 3,747 3,122 13,660
Accumulated amortisation EE ] - (179) - (179)
Net book amount REFE 6,791 3,568 3,122 13,481
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_Z—1F
+Z_A=+—HILFE
Opening net book amount FYIRMEFE 6,791 3,568 3,122 13,481
Currency translation differences SN E Z R (272) (143) - (415)
Amortisation charge BHE R - (514) - (514)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 6,519 2,911 3,122 12,552
At 31 December 2015 WRZZE-—HEF+-A=+—H
Cost B 7R 6,519 3,597 3,122 13,238
Accumulated amortisation EE ] = (686) = (686)
Net book amount iR A ¥ A 6,519 2,911 3,122 12,552
Amortisation charge of HK$514,000 (2014: BB A HP5140008 L (T — O EF:
HK$186,000) is included in “research and 186,000/ L) st AT R FERZIA -

development expenses”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination is
allocated to the Optics Products CGU for
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a
growth rate of 3% (2014: 3%). The growth rate used
are determined by management based on the
performance of the CGU and its estimated future
developments in the market. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 20.2% (2014:
21.0%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks related.

16

GeMBRRME

BILEE(R
7 R R

AEBAHESZAENETLEEMR
SELET  NWETHERH -

ReEHETz kB e®E  NERRS
METER - BREETENERZATHEZ
WKBEE  UEREERE - AFHNUI
ZEERETIEAI% (ZZE—UF : 3%) 1%
REEE -FIFEANERETAEERER
BRSERETL s REREFERAEZRT
BHERMET - RERETF H20.2%
BRIREBEIR (2 —OF : 21.0%) © Fr{F A
2 BRIR R A AT K R MR E AR BE R o
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17 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

17 OB ESHMEE

ASSETS
2015 2014
ST AT ekaif:s
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FiE T
(Restated)
(s 5)
At 1 January n—H—H 1,344 -
Currency translation differences INEEITE £ R (54) (53)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 29) g el =N
(Wt i#29) = 1,402
Additions N 23,954 —
Net gains/(losses) transfer to equity BEEESENKES
(E18) %% 7,041 )
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 32,285 1,344
Less: Current portion B mEE - -
Non-current portion SER BB 32,285 1,344
Available-for-sale financial assets include the MY ESHEERIE T Y&IE:
following:
2015 2014
= s T —F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THExT FE T
(Restated)
(gE5)
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value FELEMRERE
(Note (a)) BAREE
(K5t (a) 31,101 —
Unlisted debt investment, at quoted FEEMEBHIKE -
price (Note (b)) R E (A (b)) 1,184 1,344
32,285 1,344
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17 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in
USD.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of the debt
investment classified as available-for-sale.

Notes:

(a) The fair value of the unlisted equity investment is based on
comparable transaction method and equity value allocation
with option-pricing method performed by an independent
valuer. The fair value is within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (Note 3.3).

(b) The fair value of the unlisted debt investment is based on
quoted price. The fair value is within level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

GeMBRRME

17 AHtHESREEGE)

AfthESREEREITAE -

RBESAMAAZNEREERRAD R
RAHHEZERREZREE -

pi:

FELEMRIERE Z AR BETRIEB L(EER
A ERFE R AR TEREELREEED
BABE AABEBAABEEBAEIER
(P 3£3.3) °

HEFELTEBREOAARBERBREDRE -
RABEERRAEERERDEIE M E
3.3) °
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ma

18

19

SR EEL:
INVENTORIES 18 &
2015 2014
= s T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(&L &E5)
Work in progress £ & 22,955 36,770
Finished goods 5K Gh 78,851 110,575
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories W RETENEE (24,695) (12,084)
77,111 135,261
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and REEHRBAILAATHEER AT
included in “cost of sales” amounted to B B AR 51,054,067,00058 7T (ZZF — P04 -
HK$1,054,067,000 (2014: HK$1,123,009,000) for the 1,123,009,000% 7T ) (P 5E8) ©
year (Note 8).
The Group charged to the consolidated income AEERFAEHEREFTERBEFHE B
statement an amount of HK$12,669,000 (2014: EFEEELMBEEEE 2 EER
credited HK$870,000) in respect of the net amount MR 4R & W 2= X 0 £ 58 A12,669,0007 7T
of the provision for obsolete inventories, loss on (ZZE—WF : 51 A870,000/8 1)  HLE
obsolete inventories and write-down of inventories to HEFAGARERANMBEEREAET o
their net realisable value for the year. These
amounts have been included in the cost of sales in
the consolidated income statement.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 10 FE U BR 7 & H b FE I X
2015 2014
TE-RF [kgiks
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Trade receivables (Note (a)) JE W2 BR 3R (M 52 (a)) 75,472 54,097
Bills receivables (Note (a)) W =A% (K it (a) 123,209 52,840
198,681 106,937
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B« & &
H fth, i W 5K 4,414 3,198
203,095 110,135
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GeMBRRME

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 BRI R H it BdFE(E)
(Continued)

Notes: it -

(@) The Group generally grants credit periods of 30 to 120 days. (@) AEBE—REHIOE120RKNEER - BIER
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on ZERHFENERERRERNERR TN
invoice dates is as follows: ™

2015 2014

—E—AF —E—NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FHET

(Restated)

(seE75))

0-30 days 0-30K 106,393 67,095
31-60 days 31-60K 78,214 26,500
61-90 days 61-90K 13,193 6,981
91-180 days 91-180K 881 6,361
198,681 106,937

(b) R-Z—AF+-A=1+—H0 AEEHZAHY
18 2K S50 9 7B U BR 3K 51,044,000 7T (ZF —

(b) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade receivables of
HK$1,044,000 (2014: HK$3,073,000) were past due but not
impaired. These trade receivables relate to a number of Y 4F : 3,073,000/ 7T) © 2 E W R R E % £
independent customers for whom there is no significant EEAVBRENBIEFPER  BEBIKE
financial difficulty and based on past experience, the % ZE@AZRBETYRE -
overdue amounts can be recovered.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were past due E@EERRENERERNEREITOT
but not impaired is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-0F —F-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&)

Amounts past due B HARIE
1-30 days 1-30K 196 1,630
31-60 days 31-60K 832 1,476
61-90 days 61-90K = 27
91-180 days 91-180K 16 40
1,044 3,073
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FEMBRRME

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 BWEFREMEWRR(E)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Wt (&)
() The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other (© AEEEKERREMERRZERERN
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: TEWEE:
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FE T
(Restated)
(e=7))
HKS T 796 1,367
usb ETT 199,612 104,712
RMB AR 1,895 2,841
TWD A 792 1,215
203,095 110,135
(d) The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate (d) ERERREMERRZAABERELER
their carrying amounts. BIEE -

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 20 HEekBAEEEY FRHAE
FIXED DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL B={EAzEBFHARZRE
MATURITY DATE MORE THAN THREE BITER
MONTHS AND RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS

2015 2014
—Z2—hF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(Restated)
(&E5)
Total bank deposits, bank balances and cash #R17175k « RITEH KL
e B 166,024 156,067
Less: Restricted bank deposits included in 3 : st ARBEED
current assets (Note) ZIRHIRITIER
(H15t) (20,316) (22,230)
Fixed deposits with original maturity REIEFA BB =1
date more than three months RZEBER (17,755) (21,401)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEYD 127,953 112,436
Note: As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits of HK$20,316,000 Wi RZZE—AF+=-_A=+—H8 17K
(2014: HK$22,230,000) were secured for the Group’s 20,316,000/ 7T (ZZ —PU4F : 22,230,000/ 7T)
borrowings and banking facilities (Note 23). FYERRBEER R IRITRVE B IR  ( 5523) -
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GeMBRRME

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 20 RERBTEEY
FIXED DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL B=ERzEHPERARZR
MATURITY DATE MORE THAN THREE IRITER(E)

MONTHS AND RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s total bank REFEBRTHER  ROLGHERECE@
deposits, bank balances and cash are denominated BUATHESEE:
in the following currencies:

2015 2014
S T U4
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
(Restated)
€ 3=-271))
HK$ BT 6,966 7,374
Usbh ETT 122,619 85,649
RMB AR¥ 22,197 42,906
TWD e 14,242 20,138
166,024 156,067
21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 BRA
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
—ZE—0F —E-MmF
+=A=+-H +t-—A=+—~H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
IR 8B &8 fi% 17 81 B k-]

(thousands) Sl (thousands) HK$’000
(F®&) FHET (Fh) FEXT

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 5 % & 3 i%0.01
each BT 5,000,000 50,000 5,000,000 50,000
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FEMBRRME

21 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

21 BRA(4&)

Ordinary
Number shares of
of shares HK$0.01 each
BREER
R4 & E 0.0178 7t
HK$’000
FAET
Issued and fully paid: BEETRELE:
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—mHF—HF—H 10,000 —
Issue of shares by way of placing (Note (a) & B & 21T D
(H## @) 330,000,000 3,300
Capitalisation Issue (Note (b)) BRI BT (K72 b) 989,990,000 9,900
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R —F
+ZA=+—Hk
—E—-RF—H—H 1,320,000,000 13,200
Issue of new shares as consideration for BITRMNIERLR
common control combination (Note (c)) THlEHHRE
(&t (c) 163,687,151 1,637
At 31 December 2015 R_E—LF
+-—A=+—H 1,483,687,151 14,837
Notes: B 5t :
(a) Public listing (@) ABLET
On 7 February 2014, the Company has allotted and issued RoEB—ME—-FA+H AR EEEER
330,000,000 shares at the offer price of HK$0.30 per share 0.307% 7T Bt 3¢ & % 7330,000,0000% A% 7 + 3£
raising gross proceeds of approximately HK$99 million. £ AT 18 27 TH 48 58 4999,000,0005% 7T °
(b) Capitalisation of share capital (b) BARE AR

On 7 February 2014, 989,990,000 shares were issued by
way of capitalisation of share premium on the proceeds
from the allotment of 330,000,000 shares stated in note (a)
under the capitalisation issue as detailed in the
Prospectus.

Consideration Shares

As part of the consideration of the Acquisition pursuant to
the Agreement, 163,687,151 Consideration Shares were
issued on 30 April 2015, at which time the share price of
the Company was HK$2.38 per share (Note 2.1.1).

Perfect Optronics Limited 2015 Annual Report

MZZE—MFE = A+ H - 989,990,000/ f& 5
i 38 & AL B 7 () BT 3 &9 BC 3£330,000,000%
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RERS
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GEMBEREME )

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ENERAKREME
2015 2014
= Ll —TNF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(&5
Trade payable (Note (a)) JE A BR SR (47 72 (@) 143,272 72,525
Deposits received from customers WEEPE % 10,727 6,747
Accruals and other payables JE R 3R T8 R H RSP 10,430 11,256
164,429 90,528
Notes: Bt -
(@) The ageing analysis of trade payable based on invoice dates (a) RERZAHTENEMNEROERER TN
is as follows: T
2015 2014
—B-AF —E-—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHT
(Restated)
(&)
0-30 days 0-30K 118,563 46,345
31-60 days 31-60K 12,666 19,654
61-90 days 61-90K 11,990 6,525
91-180 days 91-180K 58 1
143,272 72,525
(b) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables (o) ERNEREEMENRCEEAEREERAAE
approximate their fair values. BERE -
23 BANK BORROWINGS 23 RITHER
2015 2014
= is | CF U4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank advances for factored receivables RIZ FECREVIRITE R = 31,541
Short-term bank loans EERITER 31,200 15,600
31,200 47141
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FEMBRRME

23 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 23 RITER(E)
As at 31 December 2014, the Group factored trade RZE—MF+H=1T—8 ' A&£EBH
receivables of approximately HK$31,541,000 to a J& U BR 3X 4931,541,000/8 ST X M — KRR 1T
bank. As the Group still retained risks and rewards f%fi AXAEEDRBEGBAHER KT
associated with the default and delay in payment by BEFHABENRBRMOTE  HREZEE
the debtors, the proceeds from the factoring of RS H B RIBERIEREENEE -
these trade receivables have been accounted for as WEt AMRIZ BB ARITRARIBT

the Group’s liabilities and included in “Bank
advances for factored receivables”.

The scheduled repayment date of the Group’s bank EXmEMSEETERELZEREERRY
borrowings, as set out in the loan agreements and Z2HAREERRITERGEE 15 2 A
without considering the effect of any repayment on T o ATHMMREAEERSEHNES
demand clauses were as follows. The analysis below 7B B HA M R & SK I R & B EI’UJ—H?M

also represents the Group’s exposure to interest rate
changes on borrowing at the contractual repricing

dates.
2014
—me
HK$'000
FET
Within 1 year 1ER 31,200 47141
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank 215 lf&'%ﬂ%mﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁf BERN R EEME
borrowings approximate their fair values and are o WAETFE °
denominated in USD.
During the vyear, the bank borrowings were secured FARITERBATIFEER
by:
()  bank deposits of HK$20,316,000 as at 31 [0) A—E—RAF T HA=1T—HKIEIT
December 2015 (2014: HK$22,230,000) (Note 17 20,316,000/ 7T (ZF — M 4 :
20); and 22,230,000/ 7o) (M 5£20) + &
(i) corporate guarantees provided by the (i) ARABRRMEZREER -
Company.
In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to br ExXFratE SN AEBEREEBTIRT
comply with certain loan covenants imposed by the METERRZHE
banks.
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GeMBRRME

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 24 BZEFFIEHRERE

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as BLEMEHAEENDTOT :
follows:
2015 2014
TE-RF [kaiks
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FHET
(Restated)
(s 5)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BELEFEHAaE:
— to be settled after more than 12 months  — #FM2{8 B % X 1+t (474) (570)
— to be settled within 12 months — B2 AR 2R (170) (161)
(644) (721)
The movements in deferred income tax (liabilities)/ BERERNE(NR),SRRHIBTEGRL
assets in respect of (accelerated)/decelerated tax BT (BRE) EEZHNOT:

depreciation during the year are as follows:

2015 2014
= aes T EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
(Restated)
(E5)
Beginning of the year F (721) 57
Currency translation difference SNEE YT E =R 24 24
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 29) U B — A B /B8 2 A
(H17#29) = (662)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated income A (B &GRE
statement (Note 12) WSk (Mt at12) 58 (140)
End of the year FR (644) (721)
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)

24

25

Bt 7% R & T A
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 24 EZEFEBHAEE)
(Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax REMGERNEEDR R EEEEE MR
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation R+ MEBR O AE B 7% T8 ) 1 AT B R 2R FE AR B
of the related tax benefit through future taxable FHBRBEARE RZE—AF+H
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2015, the —t+t—H AEBEUERRELEHIBEEE
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of 4,081,000/ 7T (= & — IO 4 : 3,482,000/
HK$4,031,000 (2014: HK$3,482,000) in respect of ) A RETHEMBAR ZCHIEEE
tax losses of certain PRC subsidiaries of 340,000/ 7T (ZZ —PU4F : 1,682,000/ 7T)
HK$340,000 (2014: HK$1,682,000), which will be (BREFERXR) —HEERRZBIA
expired in five years, tax loss of a Taiwan subsidiary 5 1822,230,000% (= T — @ F:
of HK$22,230,000 (2014: HK$19,566,000), which will 19,566,000/ 70) (F R+ F & K ) - AR
be expired in ten years, as well as tax loss of a —MBENEB AR 2 FIEEE1,011,000%
Hong Kong subsidiary of HK$1,011,000 (2014: Nil) T(ZE—OF: EBEBEBARIFETE X
which do not expire under current tax legislation. ) o
DIVIDENDS 25 KRE
2014
—E—F
HK$'000
FAT
Interim dividend FHARR B - -
Proposed final dividend of HKO.5 cent EEABEREERER
(2014: HKO.5 cent) per ordinary share fg0.58 L (== —m
F:0.5%81) 7,418 6,600
7,418 6,600

Final dividend for 2015 and 2014 was proposed by
the directors of the Company to its equity holders.
The amount of proposed final dividend for 2015 and
2014 were based on 1,483,687,151 shares and
1,320,000,000 shares in issue as at 15 March 2016
and 25 March 2015 respectively.
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ARAREREZNAARFEZFAEATIR
TE-RAFRZE-NOFEHMREARE =
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26 CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

26 HEELENRE

2015 2014
= s —TE—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
(Restated)
(&e&E5)
Profit before income tax R P 15 B¢ A1 A 32,027 32,220
Adjustments for: BATEBEARE:
— Depreciation of property, plant and — ME - BERK
equipment (Note 15) e Hit15) 2,006 1,022
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) — #HEF A E
(Kt st 16) 514 186
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and — HEWE BEK
equipment REREBE = 39
— Finance income — BRI A (1,101) (690)
— Finance costs — BB ER 1,423 2,550
— Share of loss of an associate — E—HEBEAR
&8 S 953
— Loss on re-measurement of associate to = — D FEERER Z E1E
acquisition date fair value in business BHRERT =N
combination achieved in stages BRI EE HER
PABEMEEZ
18 = 2,028
Operating profit before changes in working  &E & & # E AL S
capital A 34,869 38,308
Changes in working capital EEETED
— Inventories - FE8 58,150 (1,084)
— Trade and other receivables - BERR
H A FE UK (92,960) 42,407
— Trade and other payables — BEERR
A FE TR 73,901 (69,741)
Cash generated from operations KEEELAMIRS 73,960 9,890
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FEMBRRME

26 CASH GENERATED FROM 26 REELNES(E)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, RIFEHRSTRERRN HEWE  BEX
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and BEATERIERLRE
equipment comprise:
2014
—E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(e &E5)
Net book amount (Note 15) REFENFZ15) = 101
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEK
equipment RENEIE — (39)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant LEWE BEK
and equipment RER SRR = 62

Non-cash transactions

The principal non-cash transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2015 are: (i) the issue of
Consideration Shares as consideration for the
Acquisition as detailed in Note 2.1.1; and (i) Mr.
Cheng waived a shareholder’s loan of approximately
HK$29,349,000 payable by Perfect Shiny upon
completion of the Acquisition, pursuant to the
Agreement.
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HE_Z-—AF+-_A=+—-HILFEH
TBEFRERBA/ NBTRERDIER
WS 2R EFIBHRMFE21.1) 5 Ri)
KRB FETKRE  RIEZWHE - Bt
TR EE (B 1) 8 2 B BRE 3K 4929,349,00078
T o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments — Group companies
as lessee

The Group acts as lessee under operating leases.
The Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of buildings

GeMBRRME

27 TRIE
CRAERE — SEEATAEES
REBACLHENERY - BIBETH

TARMEEEE  AREORKINR
EESHIIMT

as follows:
2015 2014
=Lkl T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
No later than 1 year 15K 6,386 5,489
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 1918 N5F K 726 866
7,112 6,355

These leases typically run for an initial period of one
to three years.

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no material
contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).

ZEMENNBEE R/ —E=%F -

28 HAEE

RZE-REF+-A=+—HB KAEEL
BEARSIARB(CE-—WF E)-
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FEMBRRME

On 22 January 2014, Perfect Shiny acquired
30.91% equity interest in Shinyoptics for a cash
consideration of TWD45,200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$11,550,000), which was then
accounted for as an associate using equity method
of accounting (Note 11). In September 2014, Perfect
Shiny acquired a further 19.23% equity interest for
cash and Shinyoptics became a 50.14% owned
subsidiary of Perfect Shiny Group.

Shinyoptics is principally engaged in the design,
development, production and sale of micro-projector
optical engines and the design and development of
applied optics-related products.
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29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 29 ¥KEHt

R-ZT—WE—A=+=—8 BEHKEH
Y HEZ23091%EE  BReERES/SMEE
45,200,0007T (FHE 7 4911,550,000& 7T) *
BRI AENRERSEABE AT
AR (HEE11) e R=F—WFAA - EHNR
B@ o — S M T 219.23% Ak -
i 8 37 ¢ B B &% (B 1% 5k B E 5 50.14% 1 2=
Z M AR -

WM EEEWER  FE ZENHE
EMBERFABSNE  UNRTRFAERE
AXBEmR -
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GeMBRRME

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration
paid for Shinyoptics, the fair value of assets

29 ¥(BEG(E

TEREIIMHIAEZEMNKE  REHBE
AHZ B EE - FTAEAE MIFER

acquired, liabilities assumed and the non-controlling BEZARERE:
interests at the acquisition date:
Consideration: RAE:
HK$'000
FBTT
Cash consideration transferred EERBSRE 18,642
Fair value of equity interest in Shinyoptics before the 27 & £ B 15 3 Y¢ B AL A
business combination w2 A EAE 8,569
Total consideration BRE 27,211
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired AT RIFTEE B & E R AT A
and liabilities assumed: FAENCHRESE:
Cash and cash equivalents BERBESEEYD 19,509
Fixed deposits with original maturity date more than ~ RERIHHBGB=EA =2
three months 7E BB 17 3K 12,405
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) Y BB LR
(K1 7#15) 951
Patents (included in intangible assets) (Note 16) ERGNEERLEE)
(Kt zt16) 3,896
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 17) AP ESREE
(K1 5£17) 1,402
Inventories BB 2,751
Trade and other receivables JE U BR SR K EL A P UK 791
Trade and other payables JE AT BR A e B Ath B R (858)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 24) EIERL B B & (A 224 (662)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEERLT 40,185
Non-controlling interests IR (20,036)
Goodwill (Note 16) (it 16) 7,062
27,211
Analysis of net cash inflow in respect W E—FHNB AR 2
of the acquisition of a subsidiary: ReneFEIMN:
Cash consideration ReRE (18,642)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (Note 14) BERERSRACEEYD
(K7 7E14) 19,509
Cash inflow from acquisition Wb 2 3] A 867

Acquisition related costs were not significant and
have been charged to general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

HWBHBZX AL TERMDFABRE
“E-NEF_A=T-HLEFEZEE

WaRZ—RRITHFEX -
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=
)

29

30

B 7% 3R & B 5

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
(Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s 30.91% equity interest
in Shinyoptics before the business combination was
estimated by using a discounted cash flow model.
This fair value was adjusted for the lack of control
and lack of marketability that market participants
would consider when estimating the fair value of the
30.91% equity interest in Shinyoptics. The Group
recognised a loss of HK$2,028,000 as a result of
measuring at fair value its 30.91% equity interest in
Shinyoptics held before the business combination.

The revenue included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income since 5 September 2014
contributed by Shinyoptics was HK$341,000.
Shinyoptics also accounted for loss of
HK$1,958,000 over the same period.

Had Shinyoptics been consolidated from 1 January
2014, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income would show pro-forma revenue of
HK$1,300,133,000 and profit of HK$21,783,000.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant
influence.

(a)  The directors of the Company are of the view

29

30

that the following company that had
transactions with the Group are related
parties:

Name

£ il Yol 2R e

%S 6t (HF)

XBAMHE AEBEFEBEHNULALEDN
30.91% 2 AREE  HEAUERE 2
MEENGEE - NMEE R HEERN30.91%
Rz AREBEER BERMEL2HETE
R Z S RATE M Z AR EEIES
B o ASERZARBESAEXHE M
BB Z30.91% M L EREMEREIB
2,028,000/ 7T °

BA-_Z-—NFEAARBIAGA @RS
FE LN BIA T B A341,000/8 7T ©
3B RN [E —HAE IR b 5 18 881,958,000
BT o

BRUOEHINHER-_ZE—NFE—A—HB#ED
RAEANE GezHbzREBREZSK
A1,300,133,0007% 7T & & JE21,783,000/%
7T|: o

BETRS

W= A EEREEERN ST 85
—TEHPBREERREFEEATE
A TG REAET - X KRES
IHRERTEENBEED

(a) ARAREERE UWTARAHENE
BHETIZHEET:

Relationship with the Group

Earn Master Limited
Earn Master Limited
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the
year.

GeMBRRME

30 BERRZ(H)

HBEELTNRS

BaEVBRRAEREN  KE
BFEREREBHETATRS -

2015 2014
=L ki T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FE T
Rental expense paid to Earn Master ¥ ftEarn Master
Limited Limited &9 78 & 7 & 816 816

In the opinion of the directors, these
transactions were determined at mutually
agreed prices and terms.

Balances with related parties (©)

(i) Loan from a shareholder

EERR RERXZNEETHE
HE IR S R R B R -

BRRE SN AR

() BREEK

2015 2014

—T AT etk

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FHET

(Restated)

€ <=2

At 1 January w—H—H 27,769 —

Loans advanced during the year FRE&MHE R 1,580 27,769
Loans waived during the year B Z = FA

pursuant to the Agreement WENE R
(Note 2.1.1) (K7 :#2.1.1) (29,349) —
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H = 27,769

BXXEBEHER®XAF 2015 F§
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

©

Balances with related parties (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Loan from a shareholder (Continued)

The above balance arose from the loan
advanced from Mr. Cheng to Perfect
Shiny before the completion of the
Acquisition. The balance was unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within one
year. Pursuant to the Agreement, Mr.
Cheng waived the shareholder’s loan of
approximately HK$29,349,000 payable by
Perfect Shiny upon completion of the
Acquisition.

30 BEAR

©

Ra (&

BB NE (A

(1)

Jala! B 2 /43
R E (&)

bt S ERIR A W B F IR ST
RSB S R Bl 5 B A B B3R o
HEBRREER RS RBA
R—FREE - REZ D -
MAENKBEHETKERE
BlHENZBERERD
29,349,000/ 7T °

Note payable (i) ENTEE

2014
—T-MEF
HK$'000
FiE T

Promissory note payable to JERTER L 2 A H Bk
Mr. Cheng 20,000 -

Less: Portion classified under WD BARBAEEGE Y
current liabilities i) (10,000) —
Non-current portion EEN B 10,000 -

Pursuant to the Agreement, promissory
note in favour of Mr. Cheng in the
amount of HK$20,000,000 is issued as
part of the consideration of the
Acquisition (Note 2.1.1). The promissory
note is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable in two equal portions in the
amount of HK$10,000,000 each on 30
April 2016 and on 30 April 2017,
respectively.
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d)

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior
management. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

GeMBRRME

30 BERRZ(H)

d ZESBEASEH

TEEBEANBBEESLRSRER
cFLEEPTIEEMNRBENSLIE
NEZEEABNHHAOT:

2015 2014

=L ki T

HK$°000 HK$’000

TExT F# T

Short-term employee benefits MHEERA 8,759 8,402
Post-employment benefits & B RIKIE A

— defined contribution plans — EREH ARG E 60 67

8,819 8,469

BxxEFR2DA 2015 £
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31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31 ZRATGHHMBERARKFEERE
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) AATHEBEARRE
Company
As at 31 December
R+t=-—B=+—8H
2015
—E-—FF
Note HK$’000
k=3 FERT
Assets EBE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries HRBARMKE 525,657 136,082
Intangible assets BEEE 3,122 3,122
528,779 139,204
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables Ho At W3k 305 500
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UG BT B8~ B 3N AR 99,257 95,348
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 4,357 5,730
103,919 101,578
Total assets EEAE 632,698 240,782
Equity and liabilities EzRkEaE
Equity attributable to equity AATERZEFEEA
holders of the Company PEfh R &=
Share capital & 2 14,837 13,200
Reserves ki (b) 617,390 227,212
Total equity EHBE 632,227 240,412
Liabilities a&
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H b JE 3K 471 370
Total liabilities EE8E 471 370
Total equity and liabilities EaRkBEHEE 632,698 240,782
The statement of financial position of the RARMHBARRRERZZE—RF
Company was approved by the Board of —ATHABRESSHE  UWRKRE
Directors on 15 March 2016 and was signed EEEE -
on its behalf.
Cheng Wai Tak Tse Ka Wing
Director Director
BEE EES- S
EZE EZE
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31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31 ZEATHEERRBEEESS
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) ERATBNFEEED

Share Contributed Retained

premium surplus  earnings Total
B@HEE HBARES BEWEHE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
(Note)
(H1#t)
At 1 January 2014 M_E—MEF
—H—H — 136,082 22,364 158,446
Profit for the year FEFH - - 10,766 10,766
Issue of shares by way i i Bt & 17R% (D
of placing (Note 21(a)  (#fit21() 95,700 — — 95,700
Share issue expenses XD 1T X (8,000) - - (8,000)
Capitalisation Issue B EETT
(Note 21(b)) (K it21b) (9,900) — — (9,900)
Dividends paid relating —Z— =%
to 2013 RS — - (19,800)  (19,800)
At 31 December 2014 HR=—Z—P4F
and 1 January 2015 +=—A=+—8
M -_Z—hE
—H—H 77,800 136,082 13,330 227,212
Profit for the year FEFH - — 9,658 9,658
Issue of new shares as Z1TH R E AL FE
consideration for rTHIEHIKE
common control (Ki:t2.1.1)
combination
(Note 2.1.1) 387,938 — — 387,938
Dividends paid relating —Z—PU4&E >
to 2014 ERRE - — (7,418) (7,418)
At 31 December 2015 T —14F
+=—A=+—H 465,738 136,082 15,570 617,390
Note: Contributed surplus of the Company represents the MisE: RARZBABBRRAARBHEITR
difference between excess of the nominal value of NEEEARBEEAKEZMNEARZ
the Company’s shares issued and the aggregate BEFEAFTZBLESE -

net asset value at the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Reorganisation.
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

32 EFZREARER

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EERTHRAZRZHS
The remuneration of every director and the BEERITHES Z2HMNET
chief executive is set out below:
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries, to a
allowances retirement
and benefits Discretionary benefit
Fees in kind bonuses scheme Total
e 2ER EEHEK
e BWEA BMEERA BAGEERK st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
For the year ended HE—_Z—A1fF

31 December 2015 +tZA=+—HILFE

Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chief Executive) 818 1% 5 £ (7T B # #) = 5,016 700 18 5,734
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BRREE — 636 159 18 813
Mr. Tse Ka Wing (Note (i) R (i) = 1,103 277 14 1,394
Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai (Note (i) BREREM F (i) — 128 — 6 134
Independent non-executive directors: B HEHITEE
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John ERELE 120 = = = 120
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu ERBELE 120 = = = 120
Mr. Li Shui Yan FmBLEE 120 — — — 120
360 6,883 1,136 56 8,435
For the year ended BHE-_ZT-—MF

31 December 2014 ToAEtT—HIEFE
Executive directors: HITEE -

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak BEESEFTRAR)

(Chief Executive) - 4,896 350 17 5,263
Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai BRELE - 360 - 17 377
Mr. Liu Ka Wing Baiki4E - 618 300 17 935
Independent non-executive directors: BN IEHITEE :

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (Note () & 2 &5 4 (B 2()) 108 - - - 108
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu (Note (i) BERBEE M F0) 108 - - - 108
Mr. Li Shui Yan (Note (i) s B M 20) 108 - - - 108

324 5,874 650 51 6,899
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:
(i) Appointed on 20 January 2014
(if) Appointed on 26 March 2015

(iif) Retired on 8 May 2015

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2014: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for contracts amongst group companies,
the Agreement in relation to the acquisition of
Perfect Shiny as detailed in Note 2.1.1 and
disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts to which the
Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

33 COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in Note 2.1.1 to these financial
statements, certain comparative amounts have been
restated as a result of the adoption of merger
accounting for the common control combination
taking place during the year.

GeMBRRME

32 EEFZEAMNNRE @ GE)

() EBEERGTHARZME ()

Wit -

0] RZZE—WF-A=-+HEZE
(i) RIB-—RF=ZA-+R AEZE
(i) RZT—HFRANBRME

MEEENFARZXREREML
e (T —mF: &) -

b)) EBERXZ REISHNERE

m

REEAREZAEX  BRKEER
B ek (REBE A M E2.1.) Rt
MBRREMIBOABEEEN
BARR BB RARAES
BAEAEDZ(TWERIBEZ
HBEREMEARS ZHLEAE
WM FRRFRNEMEBFE

33 LEREF
AN B R SRR P S 21 A BT — S

MR E R B AN HKFHES S R A 6
A ATHBREFEREES -
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Financial Summary

B E

2015
—E-RF
HK$’000

FTHET

Results E

Revenue A 1,274,174

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-ALEE
2014 2013 2012 2011

—2-mF 2= ZT—=—F ZFT——F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FET FHET
(Restated)  (Restated)
(e =351) (&5

1,299,495 1,669,656 1,382,683 1,627,122

Profit for the year attributable to: 4 Z F;E R B R

Equity holders of the /NGRS
Company BAEA 27,732 26,148 71,099 35,193 33,999
Non-controlling interests JEIE RS (2,290) (975) - - -
25,442 25173 71,099 35,193 33,999
Dividends % 8 7,418 6,600 49,800 58,000 18,000

As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
- s  ZE—FE —T—= —E——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FAET FAT FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(s =751) (=7)

Assets, liabilities and EE -BER

non-controlling interests FERER
Total assets BEWRE 496,002 423,296 387,252 347,107 337,648
Total liabilities aERE (216,273)  (166,159)  (244,651)  (249,455)  (217,189)
Non-controlling interests IEVERRBE = (15,248) (18,326) - — -
264,481 238,811 142,601 97,652 120,459

Note: B &

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

The financial information for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011 were extracted from the prospectus of the Company dated 24
January 2014.

The financial information for the years ended 31 December 2015, 2014

and 2013 were extracted from the Company’s published audited financial
statements and restated as appropriate.
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